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Cautionary statements

This document has been prepared solely to provide information to shareholders to assess the Company's strategies and
the potential for those strategies to succead, and to inform them of the Company’s performance dunng the penod ended
31 December 2009 The document which contains the Director's Report and Business Review, the Financial Statements

and the independent Auditor's Report should riot be relied on by any third party or for any other purpose

The document contains certam forward looking statements based on knowiedge and informaton available to the directors
at the date the document was prepared Alfthough the directors’ expectations are based on reasonable assumptions,
these statements should be treated with caution due fo the inherent uncertainties underlying such forward looking
information and any staternents about the future outiook may be mfluenced by factors that could cause actual outcomes

and results to be matenally different




DIRECTORS’ REPORT AND BUSINESS REVIEW

Exova Group Limited Registered Number 06720350

CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

2009 was a time of change for the business The Group was established by funds managed by private equity firm
Clayten, Dubilier & Rice {CD&R)

Headquartered in the UK and operating 111 laboratories in 24 countnes worldwede, the Group prowides techmeal and
adwisory services to the Aerospace, Automotive, Construction/Col Engineenng, Defence, Environmental, Food &
Consumer, Energy, Metallurgy & Engineenng, Pharmaceuticals & Medtcal, Plastics & Polymers, Telecommunications &
Electronics and Utilibies industnes The Group's services include quality control, product accreditation, and specification
compltance and are, invanably, mission critical to iks clients

CD&R has developed a global reputation as the pioneer of active management in prvate equity and has received broad
recogmition for its long-standing business medel of generating supenor returns by enhancing the business performance of
its portfolio compantes CD&R nvests in market-leading companies, often, but not exclusively, in services-related sectors,
and in companies where it believes significant value can be created through operating perfearmance improvements

CD&R acquired the Testing business from Bodycote plc because the business 1s a strong market leader, operating in
attractive long-term growth markets, with significant potential to improve its operattons and performance Since joiming as
Chairman of the Group 1n Ogtober 2008, | have seen the business rebrand as Exova and make {remendous strides to
embrace change, in order to become more streamlined, and to exploit the significant opportunities available to develop the
business across its range of end markets

A structure tor the future

Since acquisiion, we have recrgamsed our management structure to ensure that the Sentor Leadership of the Group I1s as
close to the operations of the business as possible We have made a number of structural changes to ensure our staff

has the best possible leadership and the technical expertise for which we have a world-wide reputation continues to be
nurtured Successful companies are those where the slaff has a pnde and passion for their organisation, and it s our
objective to ensure this will always be the case

The challenges ahead

The Group delivered good operating results in the pertod, despite tough economic conditions and a significant
restructuring programme Qur very talented staff embrace our values - Integrity, Teamwork, Periormance and Innovation
and { would ltke to thank them for their achievements and contmued dedication 2010 will continue to be challenging, but
we now have a much stranger platiorm for growth and development Our investment in resources and people will continue
so that we can deliver the cutstanding service to our customers

Our aim is to be the best in what we do | believe we have a firm foundation to build and grow a profitable

and world leading lesting business, which will be rewarding for the company’s employees and shareholders alke, and |
look forward 1o working with everyone at Exova to realise Ihus goal n the months and years ahead

t K

FRED KINDLE
Chairman

7 Apnl 2010




GROUP AND MARKET OVERVIEW

Introduction

Exova Group Limited (formerly CDR Tabasco Parentco Limited) was incorporated on 10 Cctober 2008 It was formed to
effect the acquisition of the Testing Dwision of Bodycote plic on 17 QOctober 2008 by funds managed by Clayton, Dubilier &
Rice, a private equity investment firm The Company remained dormant from incorporation untt 17 October 2008 when it
became the holding company of the Bodycote Testing Group of companies The Group was later rebranded as Exova
The results presented in this report are, therefore, for the penod from 17 October 2008 until 31 December 2009

The pnncapal activities of the Group are specialist testing and advisory services and the key markets served are
Aerospace, Transportation, Constructon/Civil Engineenng, Defence, Environmental, Food & Consumer, Energy,
Metallurgy & Engineernng, Pharmaceuticals & Medical, Plastics & Polymers, Telecommunications & Electromics and
Utidibes

The Group employs more than 3,500 people

Background

Although the Exova Group 15 relatively new, the underying business 1s one of the most respected testing and related
services companies in the world, with over 30 years of industry expenence

The business compnses 111 laboratones in 24 countries, staffed by an exceptional workforce of scientists, engineers,
chemists and matenals specialists Our laboralones are accredited by national agencies such as UKAS and, in many
cases, enjoy chent specific approvals from major blue chip companies such as Rolls Royce, General Motors and Wall
Mart

Our global network services both our multinational clients and local markets in a wide range of industnes, providing
national and intemational standard tests Our network allows us to transfer knowledge and deliver global best prachce,
locally

Exova operates in the Testing, Inspection and Certification (*TIC™) market, but focuses globally on the Testing sector, with
Inspection and Certification activities imited to mche market and geographic areas

Market overview

The globa! Testing, Inspection and Certification market has been valued at approximately £35 billion and s highly
fragmented — served by a muxture of global and local players Histoncally, the market place has been dominated by in-
house provision and by public sector entities While a number of pnvate sector providers have been established, the top
five global players account for less than 15% of the market, with 65% of the market still operated m-house High bamers
to entry make it difficult for new players to make a signrficant entry to the TIC market organically This 1s dnven by the
need for capital and accreditation, multi-skilled personnel requirements, competitive dynamics and demanding client
requirements

Due to the mission cntical nature of the services prowided, the market 15 relatively resiient in econemic downtums  This is
reflected in the reported results for Exova in 2009




BUSINESS REVIEW

Chief Executive’s review

Strategy

2009 has been a year of new beginnings for Exova In May 2009 we launched our new name and brand — our misston,
vision and values Exova has a clear strategy to be recognised as the number one supplier of choice for Testing and
Advisory Services We aspire to be the best We believe that being at the forefront of our industry requires talented
people, expertise and excellent processes, which we continuously seek to improve We am to balance the demands of
our stakeholders creating a sustainable, high growth orgamsation, whilst prowiding addibional value to our employees,
chents, shareholders and the communities we work In

To support our strategy we have the following business prionties

+  Organisation and people — create a devolved organtsational model led by talented leaders

¢  Operations — simplify operations to ensure safe, efficient services underminned by exceptional quality to delight
our clents

¢  Growth — embrace a culture of growth with effective sales processes to increase market share

Operating nitiatives
We continue to expand our technical competence, as demonstrated by the multiple additional accreditations we have
achieved in 2009

A reorganisation of the management structure was completed in 2008, allowing further devolvement of management
responsibility and authonty The structure facilitates a quick response to client needs whilst ensuring appropnate
governance

We have implemented a range of cost efficency and productivity mitiatives In 2009 we began the process of embedding
& continuous improvement culture within the business, which 1s part of our focus on simphifying operatons

Marketing and business development

In support of the rebranding, dunng 2009 our new website exova com was launched Phase 2 of the website will be
implemented in 2010 and will provide multiple supporting websites for each business sector to further enhance our clients’
expenence when dealing with Exova

Te support our growth strategy, the sales functon 1s being enhanced in a number of ways Improvements mclude
realigning the sales organisation, systems, sales processes, incentives and rewards

Significant contractual and other relationships

The Group does not have any clients that account for more than 3% of Group turnover As a service Company, the
Group's main operating resource Is its employees and there are no individually significant external suppliers The Group
has amanged its finance through a syndicate of banks to access the level of funding required for its leveraged structure
and the continuation of strong relationships with these banks i1s critical for the Group

Restructuring
Dunng the year we camed out a significant level of restructuring as we reduced our cost base to counter reduced volumes
1n this recessionary environment

Outlook

With our diverse client base, and with demand from our key market sectors stabilising, we are confident in the future
outlook for the business Dunng a recession a number of outsourcing oppertumties anse as our clients seek to reduce
costs and our relationships with these clients and our service reputation place us in a strong posthon to benefit The
business 1s well positioned for growth as markets slowly recover We will continue to develap our people, processes and
experitse and further nvest in technologies to support our clients’ ambitions




Operating review

The Group operates across three geographical regions, Europe, Amencas and Middle East / Asia / Asia Pacific

A segmental analysis of these regions for the penod is detailed below

2009
£'m
Revenua
Europe 1361
Amencas 926
Middle East/ Asia / Asia Pacific 40 2
2689
Adjusted EBITDA (before restructuring costs and management fee to
private equity investor)
Europe 253
Amencas 175
Middle East / Asia / Asia Pacific 102
530

* For the fourteen month and fifteen day penod since acquisition
Note the commentary below compares trading activities for the 12 months ended 31 December 2008 with the previous 12
month pencd, based on information available at the time of the acquisition

Europe

in Europe, Exova operates from 59 permanent laboratones and offices across 12 countnies The business services the
following sectors - Energy & General Engineering, Aerospace, Measurement Technologies (Metech), Health Sciences &
Environmenta! and Fire Safety & Engineenng Technology

The key developments in 2009 were

*  Restructunng - We moved to a flatter management structure which has resulted in more agile, effioent and
effective management of our operations

*  Cost reduction and rationahsation - In line with reduced demand in some sectors, we significantly reduced
our cost base We also consolidated four of our businesses which resuited In the closure of three laboratones
and one consulting office, and transferred the work to other sites

* Investment in efficiency — We introduced lean programs in three pilot laboratories, supported by investments
In capital equipment

+ Improved sales and marketing - We strengthened our sales and marketing function through the introducticn
of a range of changes to people and processes and iImproved key account management to support our larger
clents

. Significant contract wins — Several major wins were achieved In 2008, the mest significant of which were
outsourcing deals in our calibration business (Exova Metech)

*  Now laboratones — New laboratones were opened in Gothenburg, Beriin and Aberdeen

*  Now services — We introduced an MHRA-approved drug formulation facility at our Camberley faboratory in
order to provide an end-to-end service and we set up a corrosion-fatigue testing facility in our Daventry
engineenng laboratory

As a result of the global recession, trading actvity was down nearly 4% in 2009, but adjusted EBITDA and margin were
improved due to early cost reduchion actions

Despite the overall downturn, parts of our business performed very well Energy grew on the back of sustained project
activity  Qur fire business grew, despite a significant dewntum in the UK construchon sector, through a need for testing to
satisfy new EU regulations on fire protection preduction

General Engmeenng and Aerospace were more affected by the downturn, particutadly as a result of destocking In the
supply chain  Qur Metech business suffered from the loss of a large contract at the end of 2008, but has since won some
significant new work

Overall, the European business 1s now well placed to take advantage of economic recovery when it amives




Americas

The Amencas business operates a range of laboratones on 37 sites in the USA, Canada and Mexico, induding managing
client based laboratones through outsourcing agreements The laboratones provide speciahsed testing services to the
aerospace, energy, general engineenng, automotive, pharmaceutical, food and construction markets

The key developments in 2009 were

*  Laboratory rationaltsation and consolidation - Matenal testing laboratones in the Los Angeles and Chicago
areas were conschdated to maximise efficiency and we exted long term underperforming laberatones tn
Calgary, Winmpeg and Rockport

*  Management changes - Dunng the year we continued to refine our management structure and developed our
leadership The Senior Leadership Group 15 now a cohesive unit, very focused on maximising market
opportunibes A range of marketing and sales initiatives wtll enhance sales performance in 2010

*  Operationat improvements — New processes were implemented to further mprove client service Chent
satisfaction 1s monitored closely to ensure the business continues to positively respond to changing client
testing requirements

+  Outsourcing - Exova 1s able to provide clients with additional quality and cost benefits through outsourcing of
in-house client laboratones The business has been working with major clients and 1s now posiioned for a
number of opportunities, which will be bid in early 2010

In 2009, both the US and Canadian markets were negatively impacted by the economic downturn, resuling mn an 18%
reduction in sales Aggressive cost control imited the impact of the sales reduction and profit margins were improved

Duning Q4 the reduction In business was seen to stabiise and a slow economic recovery is expected In the majonty of
markets In particular, energy ciients in western Canada are expecting to further invest in ol exploration and production,
supported by an ol pnice which has almost doubled m the past year Also a number of very large pipeline projects, which
were delayed last year commenced testing at the end of 2009 The automotive sector 1s also slowly retuming to normaliy
with six new model cars forecast to be developed i the Detroit area in 2010, compared to zero models in 2009 The
client diversification of our automotive laboratory, which commenced in early 2009 places the business in a stronger
position for 2010

Following a year of restructunng and market positioning in 2009, the business is well placed for growth in 2010

Middle East / Asia / Asia Pacific

The Exova business in the Middle East / Asia / Asia Pacific operates from 15 permanent offices and laboratones across
the region, 10 in the Arabian Gulf Region and 5 in Austrahia, Hong Kong and Singapore Addmionally, the business has
established numerous site based project laboratones, particularly on large construction projects where considerable
volumes of routne tests are performed on site We also manage client based laboratones through outsourcing
agreements

Within the Middle East, our businesses generally compnse large multidisciplinary laboratones in key geographical centres
The major end markets are construction, energy, environmental, general engineenng and the rapidly expanding food
market Some of the Middle East businesses are set up as Joinl Ventures with local partners who can help entry to and
growth in more challenging markets like Saudi Arabia

In Singapore we operate both a state-of-the-art metallurgical and corrosion testing facility serving the energy sector and a
fire protection engineenng business delivenng consulting, advisory, and inspection and certification actvities  In Australia
we have mult-disciplined fire safety consulting businesses m Melboume, Sydney and Brishane, complemented by a fire
testing laboratory m Melbcurne

The key developments in 2009 were

»  Saudi Arabia - A new 'state of the art’ 3600m? laboratory opened for business n September 2009 and by the
year end had achieved all appropnate accreditations, permits and approvals including the Saud: Aramco formal
approval The business has overcome significant logistical and bureaucratic obstacles but 1s now well
positioned for 2010

» Certification and Inspection - 2009 saw the creation of a dedicaled Certification and Inspection company
based in the UAE We are targeting strategic clients, reguiators, government enties and key investment
stakeholders to ensure quality conformance of products, assets and services via integrated testing, certification
and inspecton

»  New services in Dubai and Abu Dhabi - In a conscious effort to diversify our services away from general
construction into more speciahist areas we have ntroduced an acoustics and thermal transmission testing
capability in Dubai and have also established a new cladding / fagade testing capability on Reem Island in Abu
Dhabi These new services wall be operational in Q1 2010 and we already have orders in hand




. NDT and on-site services — As a result of market opportunity and chent requests, and as a bolt-on service to
our metallurgical laboratory based testing capabilities, we have established NDT, weld inspection and site
services capability The key success in 2009 was the work done for the Yas Istand Formula 1 Hotel and we
have recently been awarded a contract in Abu Dhabu for the new Sorbonne University project

=  Singapore Fire Safety Technology business — Dunng 2009 we regsstered a new entity in Singapore ‘Exova
Wamngtonfire (Singapore) Pte’ The business witl deliver assessment work, fire safety engineenng and a fire
product certfication scheme, specfically wntten to suit the Singapore market This business secured its first
FSE contract in September 2009 associated with the new Singapore National Arts Gallery

* Singapore Testing — Restructunng of the Singapore Testing business has allowed us to grow the business
substantally and we are rapwdly becoming one of the leading accredited testing oentres in SE Asia, serving the
oil and gas sectors Addiional capabilities are being added and in Q4 the first Engineening Cntical Assessment
project was awarded and delivered with sugport from Exova (Daveniry) We are now prepanng to enter the
aerospace testing market in Singapore and will be applying for NADCAP approval in early 2010

+  Bushfires — The FST team in Australia have been working with the Australan Buildings Code Board on aspects
of a building’s ability to resist bushfires This work will lead to additional fire testing codes and requirements 1n
the future The Exova Wamngtonfire brand 13 officially recognised as part of this published code

The entire region showed 3% revenue growth 1In 2009 and 26% adjusted EBITDA growth Adjusted EBITDA margins also
improved despite the impact of start up costs in the new busmesses

The Middie East based mature testing businesses delivered overall growth, despite a significant downturn in the Dubas
construction market The strongest markets were Oman and Qatar, where the energy and construction sectors remained
buoyant The Dubai based environmental testing business and fagade technology centre delivered robust performances
as a significant portion of thair client base 1s located in other Emirates or other countries around the Guif Cooperation
Councll (GCC) and wider reglon

The collective AsialAsia Paaific fire safety technology (FST) businesses delivered strong revenue growth in 2009 The
Australan businesses delivered progressively improving performances in the second half as the Australian economy
started its recavery from the global economic recession

Cur fledgling Singapore testing business benefited from the increasingly buoyant energy market in Asia The business
grew 43% from the previous year with /mproving margins

Many of the economies in which we operate are showing growth and diversification and we continually look for
opportunities to leverage the expertise available within the wider Exova Group to serve the emerging opportunities in
these new markets This has been successfully achieved via the Group’s Technology Transfer teams




KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPls)

The Group utiises the following indicators of performance to assess Its development aganst its strategic, financial and
operational objectives The 14 month and 15 day penod to 31 December 2009 s the first penod of trading for the Group
under the current ownership and capital structure  Itis the intention in future years to establish three year trends ta record
our performance in delivery of Improvements m each of these measures

Adjusted EBITDA margin (%)

2009 19 7%

Strategic Rationale

Adjusted EBITDA margin 1s the most sigruficant
mdicator of operattng performance for the Group t
measures elements of cost effisency and cash
generation n relation to overall actvity levels
Compansons are measured to establish optimum
performance and targets for underperforming sites

Definition and calculation

The defintion of adjusted EBITDA margin i1s profit
before restructunng costs, management fee to private
equity investor, interest, taxation, depreciation of fixed
assets and amorhisaton of intangibles expressed as a
percentage of sales

Days sales outstanding (days)

2009 62 days

Strateqic Rationale

Trade recevables are the most significant element of
working capital and the main focus of working capital
management in the Group Days sales oulstanding
(“DSO") 1s measured for each entity in the Group and
benchmarked agamnst internal targets

Definition and caleulatron

DSO 1s caleulated on the countback method where
recewables at the balance sheet date are mapped to
daly sales (including sales taxes) ODally sales are
calculated as an average of the total sales for each
month divided by the number of days in the month

Net debt (E'm)

2009 £188 6 million

Strategic Rationale

As a private equity backed business with a relatively
high level of geanng, there 1s a particular focus on
cash generation at all levels within the business n
order {0 reduce extemnal borrowings

Definition and calculation

Net debt 1s defined as the carrying value of all bank
financing, other extemnal loans and finance leases net
of cash and short-term deposits Net debt does not
include loans from parent undertakings or preference
shares

Lost time accident frequency rate
{accidents/200k hours)

2009 039

Strateqic Ratignale

As a people intensive business with a very ngorous
focus on Health and Safety 1ssues, we measure lost
tme accidents for each site and benchmark aganst
the rest of the Group

Definition and calculation

Lost tme acadents are acmdents that cause
employees to be unavallable for normal dutes for
more than one day The rate 1s expressed as the
number of accidents per 200,000 hours worked




FINANCIAL REVIEW

Accounts

The first consolidated financial statements for the Group for the 14 months and 15 days to 31 December 2009 have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the EU and are included on
pages 19 to 40 The indvidual accounts of the holding company, Exova Group Limited, are prepared under UK GAAP
and are shown separately on pages 41 to 43

Results

Total sales were £268 8 milion As a result of the global recession, volumes dechned dunng the pencd In certain areas,
particularly in the general engineenng, automotive, construction and environmental sectors By the end of 2009 the
declne appeared to have stabiised in most areas The downturn in sales was mitigated by early actions to reduce costs
and, as a result, adjusted EBITDA margins steadily improved during the peried No diwvidend has been declared

Restructuring

Restructuring costs of £12 6 million were incurred i the period  These mainly related to redundancies, closures of under-
performing sites and consohdation of smaller sites info larger, more efficient laboratonies In addibion, costs were incurred
in rebranding the business and separating from the previous parent, Bodycote plc

Finance costs

Finance costs payable in cash were £18 7 mihon and non-cash interest on mezzanine debt and loans from parent
undertakings and preference shares amounted to £51 6 milion In addition, amortisation of debt 1ssue costs and the
ineffective portion of cash flow hedges amounted to £4 9 million

Taxation

The taxation charge of £3 0 milion 1s made up of £2 0 mulion of current tax and £1 0 million of deferred tax The current
tax charge related entrely to overseas temtones The Group has £24 0 millon of tax losses in vanous junsdictions which
are avallable for offset against future taxable profits

Cash flow & borrowings

Cash generated from operations was £46 4 mihen This ncluded an reduction of £9 7 million 11 working capital which
was mainly achieved through better collection of recewvables as days sales outstanding improved by 10 days over the
penod Capital expenditure on tangtble fixed assets was £14 4 milion compared to a depreciation charge of £16 9 milion

At 31 December 2009, net debt, excluding loans from parent undertakings, preference shares and denvatve financial
instruments, was £188 6 milhon

Treasury management

The general policy 1s to finance the Group through a mixure of equity and debt with a vanety of matunty dates The
objective 15 to provide sufficient capital to develop the business while safeguarding the Group's ability 1o contnue as a
going concem

The capital structure 1s managed centrally through the Group Treasury function which has responsibility for monitoning
funding and liquidity, foreign exchange and interest rate nsks

Further information on financial nsk managerent can be found in Note 17 to the Group finanal statements

Funding and hquidity
The Group banking facilities were negotiated in 2008 and total avallable facilities are £263 7 milion of which £34 2 million
was undrawn at 31 December 2009

The faciies comprise £35 million of revolving credit facility, £10 mulion of which has been allocated to an overdraft
facity, £170 milllon of senior debt and medium term loans and £58 7 million of mezzanine finance Bomowings are
maintained in each of the major functonal currencies of the Group and matunties range from 6 years to 9 years Al
facilities have common standard covenant structures and all covenants were met at 31 December 2009

The Grc;up also held cash balances of £24 9 mitlion at 31 December 2009




Foreign exchange
The Group operates in 24 countries and 1s exposed to the effect of mavements In exchange rates for transactions
undertaken in foreign currencies and the translation of curency denominated net assets and trading results

Matenal transactional currency exposures are hedged on an ongomg basis, usually by means of forward contracts, to
provide certainty of revenues and costs No speculative transactions are undertaken

Borrowings are held in currencies other than stering to prowide a hedge against a proportion of the net assets
denominated n foreign currencies  The Group does not hedge cumrency translation exposures on earmings from overseas
subsidianes

Interest rates

All external borrowang facilities are charged at vanable rates of interest However, the Group maintains a proportion of its
debt at fixed rates by entenng into mterest rate swaps At 31 December 2009 77% of the Group’s external debt was at
fixed interest rates for up to 2 years

Going concern

The Company’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and
position are described in the Bustness Review on pages 4 to 7 The financial position of the Company, its cash flows,
hquidity position and borrowing facidities are descnbed in this Financial Review  In addition, notes 17 and 18 to the
financial statements includes the Company's objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital, its financial nsk
management objectives, details of its financial instruments and hedging actvibies, and its exposures to credit nsk and
Iiquidity risk

The Duectors have reviewed the Group's budget for 2010 and its medium term financial trading projections and cash
flows, taking account of possible sensitivities to the nsks outlined on page 11 This review considered the projected
financial performance in relation to the Group's existing banking facilities descnbed above  As a result of this review, the
Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue In operational existence for
the foreseeable future For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis i prepanng the financial
statements

Policy on payment of suppliers

Terms and conditions are agreed with suppliers before business takes place and the policy 1s to pay agreed InvoIces In
accordance with the terms of payment At the year end the amount owed to frade creditors by the Group was equivalent
to 49 days of purchases from suppliers

Political and charitable donations

The Group made no chantable or palitical donations durtng the pencd

Events since the balance sheet date

There have been no significant post balance sheet events

Auditors

Emst & Young LLP shall remain in office as auditors until the Company or Emst & Young LLP otherwise determine
Statement as to disclosure of information to auditors

The Directors who held ofiice at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there 18 no
relevant audit nformation of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and each Director has taken all the steps that

hefshe ought to have taken as a Director to make himselffherself aware of any audit information and to establish that the
Company’s auditors are aware of that information
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The pnncipal nsks and uncertanties that affect the Group are outlined below
Operational

Markets

The strength of our end markets 1s key to our success Forecast of demand is difficult in the current economic conditions
and we are focused on remairing agile to adapt to the changing environment We do, however, see opportunthies ansing
in these conditions, with an ncreased potential for outsourcing from our clients of their non-core actvities, while increasing
regulatory requirements across vanous sectors further dnve our revenues

Commercial relationships

Across the Group no client accounts for more than 3% of revenues and, with a highly dwerse chent base across our
regions, there I1s no key dependence globally on any cne relationship  There 1s no significant supplier dependency within
the Group

Competitors

The testing market s highly fragmented and there 15 no single direct competrtor operating across all of our defined {esting
markets In most sectors competrtion 1s local rather than global and we use our high standards of service to mamntain our
compehtive advantage

Human resources

People are our greatest asset and loyalty 15 engendered through good working conditions, career progresston
opporturities and focused training programmes  We are also aware, however, that we must react to market conditions to
mantain performance of the busmess and close control 1s kept over people costs across all regions

Reputation

As a service business our reputation ts key to our success, and stnngent attention to compliance with all apphicable iaws
and regulations 1s essental The business 15 regularly audited both internally and externally and an open door policy 1$ in
place through which all employees are encouraged to report any legitimate concemns to senior executives

Health and safety

The Group’s work environment presents various potential nsks which are mitigated by providing traming, supemision,
procedures and appropnate maintenance of equipment A full qualty and compliance department i1s embedded mn the
organisation and nsk 1s continuously managed and assessed for maxtmum mitigation

Environment

The Group 1s aware of its corporate responsibility to mintmize its effect on the environment and makes efforts to reduce its
carbon footpnnt wherever possible The operations of its laboratones have minimal impact on the environment  We have
an Envrronmental Policy in accordance with the requirements of EN 1SO 14001

Financial

Foreign exchange nsk
The Group operates globally with the majonty of its profit being eamed outside the UK As a result, the Group is exposed
to two types of currency nsk transactonal and translational

Transactional currency exposure anses when operating subsidianes enter into transactions denorminated in a curency
other than therr functional currency  Although around 75% of the Group's sales are generated outside the UK, the
overwhelming majonty of those sales are supplied locally to clients buying i the same cumrency as input costs
Consequently, foreign exchange transaction nsk 1s low  Any significant exposures are hedged, usually by means of
forward foreign exchange transactions

Translatonal curency exposure can impact reported eamungs through the translation of the profits of overseas
subsichanes nto sterling for consolidated reporting purposes and can impact net assets through the transfation of the
Group's net investments in overseas subsidianes The Group reduces its net assets transiational currency exposures by
means of foreign currency berrowings  The Group does not hedge the transtationat exposure ansing from profit and loss
tems

Liquidity risk

Liquichity nsk ts the nsk that the Group will be unable to meet its habilites as they fall due  This is managed by montonng
forecast and actual cash flows and ensunng suffiient cash and committed borrowang facilities are in place at all tmes
and, also, that addtional headroom 15 avallable to meet possible downside scenanos Loans from investors are
predominately nan-current liabilities with interest rolled up into final amounts payable Detars of the Group's cash and
committed borowing facililes can be found in note 16 to the Group financial statements
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Credit nsk

Credit nsk 1s the nsk of financial loss if a client or counterparty fails to meet an obligation under a contract In relation to
the nsk that clients fail to settle outstanding debts, this 1s mitigated by the large number of clients and countnes over which
this risk 1s spread in addition, credit quality of the Group's significant clients 1s monitored through an assessment of
financial positien, previous payment history and with reference to external credit rating agencies  Further information
regarding the Group's credit nsk can be found in note 17 to the Group financial statements
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Cur vision

Exova's vision to be recogrused as the number one supplier of choice of testing and advisory services 1s ambitious Every
employee has a role to play in meeting this goal by demonstrating our values —nnovation, integnty, teamwork and
performance - on a daily basis These qualities unite all of our colleagues across the world and help us to meet and
exceed our clients’ expectations

Corporate and social responsibility encompasses a broad range of philosophies, activities and standards  As a relatively
new entity our objective 15 to consider the issues that are matenal to our business in order to target continuous
improvement and to achieve the best possible outcomes for our stakeholders

Our values

Integnty 1s at the heart of everything we do It 1s ingrained in our culture and 1s paramount in our dealings with all our
stakeholders We comply with the letter of the agreement and the spint in which it was conceived

Teamwork 15 our number one differentiator We share deas seamlessly, with teamwork prowiding the foundation for
global delvery Our people’s combined knowledge and expenence power our wvision and therr passion constantly raises
the bar on what we can achieve

Performance The importance of execution ts recogmised We are action onentated, accountable and deliver on our
prormises

Innovation supports the continucus improvement culture embedded N our business Qur people are encouraged and
expected to innovate

Our people

Exova ams to attract, retain, develop and inspire exceptional talent and teamwork We are committed to providing a safe
work environment whilst promoting the health and well-being of our people  This allows us to improve individual and team
performance and practices and encourage and enable innovation

2009 was a year of considerable change including the intreduction of a new de-layered organisational model to devolve
responsibility and authonty and to increase the speed of decisions and actons We established our Senior Leadership
Group and have made a number of senior external appointments to strengthen our management team We implemented
our vision and values to suppart our culture and embedded these through a programme of meetings and roadshows
across the Group

At Exova we have an uncompronusing commitment to equal opportunties  We will not discnminate against anyone
applying for a job or whilst in our employment for reasons of gender, mantal status, family status, sexual onentation,
religion or belef, age, disability, race, ethnic or national ongin or for any other reason Our employees will atways be
treated i a fair and unbiased way and their opporturuties to progress will be based on ment alone

Communications

Exova takes communication with its employees very serously and understands how a regular two-way dialogue will
improve business performance both intemally and with our clients We have an intranet based intemal communications
infrastructure called ExovaNet delivenng relevant information which 1s regulary refreshed and 15 avalable to all
employees across the Group ExovaNet offers news, blogs from the Chief Executive and Managing Cirectors, HSEQ
nformation and policies and HR information  Employees are invited to take part in Group wide discussion forums  We
publsh a brannual magazine, The Exova Magazine, which offers a perspectve on the work Exova does as well as
regional Teamwork newsletters In addibon, there are ad hoc communicalions appropnate to Group wide intiatives
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Health, safety, environment & quality

Qur bustness model 1s structured {o embrace sustanable development and mitigate the impact on the natural
environmental by reducing waste, emissions, our carbon footpnnt and consumphion of water and supplies

Exova 1s commitied to demonstrating werld class leadership in ensunng the health, safety and welfare of its employees,
clients, suppliers and wisitors It 15 also stnves to ensure that the enwronments m which it operates are protected
responsibly In order to achieve this, Exova management have introduced Health, Safety and Environmental policies and
procedures throughout the Group To complement these, formal traming courses, both internal and external, are delivered
throughout the business as required

Formal Health, Safety and Environmental audits are performed in each faaility on an on-going basis Non-conformances
raised and preventative achons completed are monitored to ensure a culture of continuous improvement throughout the
Group’s laboratones and offices

Health, Safety and Environmental KPls are detailed below

Descnption 2009 2003
Lost Work Day Incidents 15 21
Lost Work Days 103 177
Frequency Rate D39 D5
Seventy Rate 27 34

The table shows a reduction in the number of incidents including, lost work day incidents, lost work days, frequency rate
and seventy rate (The frequency rate and seventy rates given are calculated using a factor of 200,000)

An analysis of 2008 lost tme data highlighted a significant number of manual handling related injunes This prompted a
senes of targeted training courses and it 1s pleasing to note a reduction in manual handiing incidents dunng 2009

Quality

Exova has 111 permanent sites of which 90 hold ISO 17025 accreditation 1SO 17025 18 the globa! standard detailing the
general requirements for the competence of testing and calibration laboratones In the other facilities, which maumnly
provide advisory and consuitancy services, 17025 1s not applicable and other accreditations apply

In addition tp the |SO standards, most laboratones hoid other approvals from, for example, national bodies such as the
FDA (Food and Drug Admmistration, US), MHRA (Medicines and Healthcare Products Regulatory Agency, UK) or chent
approvals such as Marks & Spencer or Rolls Royce Other, industry specfic, approvals apply, for example Nadcap
(Aerospace industry)

During 2009, the scope of ISO 17025 accreditations was significantly ncreased throughout the Group as was the number
and type of other approvals granted Such additions to Exova's qualty porifolio ensure a stronger postion in the
marketplaces in which it operates

Exova I1s committed to complying with the requirements of standards such as ISO 17025, as well as its intemal policies
and procedures, in ensunng demonstrable confinuous improvement In s operations and functions This s realised,
pnmanly, through a thorough auditing and non-conformance process, where root cause analysis as well as corrective and
preventative measures ensure that non-conformances and defects are used as an opporfunity to improve the quality of
service to the client

In further demonstration of Exova's commitment to delivening client excellence and continuous improvement through

Health, Safety, Enviranmental and Qualty matters, a global Director, HSEQ has recently been appomnted The HSEQ
director has no operational responsibilities and reports directly to the Chief Executive Officer
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDER

Board members

Fred Kindle

Chairman -~ Appointed 27 November 2008

Fred joined CD&R in 2008 He s the former President and Chief Executive Officer of ABB Ltd, the world's leading supplier
of electneal and autormation equipment, systems and services Pror to joiring ABB, Fred served from 1998 to 2604 as
Presiden! and Chief Executive Officer of Sufzer Ltd, a globat industnal engineenng and manufactunng company
Previously, Fred served at McKinsey & Company in New York and Zunch In his function as partner of CD&R, Fred chars
BCA and 15 a board member of Rexel SA In addibon, he 1s a member of the boards of Zunch Financial Services, VZ
Holding Ltd and Stadler Rail Ltd

Grant Rumbles

Chief Executive Officer - Appointed 26 January 2009

Grant joined Exova as Chief Executive Officer in October 2008 Previously, Grant was with Serco ple for 25 years where
he held a range of operational and management positions and worked across Europe and the Middle East  From 2004 to
2008 he was the Chief Operating Officer and in 2007 was appointed an Executive Director of Serco plc

Anne Thorburn

Chief Financial Officer — Appointed 4 December 2009

Anne Thorbum joined Exova in August 2009 as Chief Financial Officer  Anne was previously Group Finance Director of
Bntish Polythene Industnes PLC and, before that, she was Group Finance Director of Clyde Blowers PLC and a Senior
Manager in KPMG Corporate Finance

Christian Rochat

CD&R ~ Appointed 10 October 2008

Chnstian jomed CD&R in 2004 Chnsthan led the sale of Brakes and served as a director prior to CD&R's sale Prior to
joining CD&R, he was a Managing Director at Morgan Staniey Capital Partners, where he was one of three partners
responsible for the European activities of the Firm's multi-billion-dollar buyout funds Chnstian previously was a director at
Schroder Ventures (now Permira), where he was responsible for European bustness development He also worked in the
London and New York offices of Morgan Stanley's mergers and acquisthons department He holds a B A and Ph D in law
from the Université de Lausanne, as well as an MBA from the Stanford Graduate School of Business

Huw Phillips

CDE&R - Appointed 10 October 2008

Huw jomed CD&R in 2004 He played a key role in CD&R’s acquistions of Rexel and Exova Prior to CD&R, he was a
principat at Texas Pacific Group in Europe and at pan-European buyout firm Doughty Hanson He was previously an
investment manager at Clandge, Inc, a holding company managing assets for the Bronfman family, where he helped
manage a health-services company, a restaurant group, a chain of gas statiens and a magazine-publishing group Huw
also worked as a management consultant with McKinsey & Co , Inc 1n the UK He 15 a graduate of St Pefer's College,
Oxford University

Andrew Simon

Non-Executive Director - Appointed 27 November 2008

Andrew spent the first 23 years of his career at the Evode Group vanously as Chief Executive and Chairman, bulding it
from a £23 millon tumover adhesives and seatants business into a £300 million tumover international matenals and
specialty chemicals group  Since 1993 he has built up a vaned career of non executive directorships in the UK and
overseas in both Pnvate Equity and Public companies He studied at the University of Southampton and has an MBA
from the Wharten Business School at the University of Pennsyivanta Andrew was appointed by the Board of Exova
Group Lrmited as Chairman of the Audit Commuttee

Helmut Eschwey

Non-Executive Director — Appointed 27 November 2008

Helmut served until 2008 as Chawman and CEQ of Heraeus Holding GmbH, a privately owned conglomerate of precious
metals and high-tech comparies headquartered in Germany Before joining Heraeus, he held senior positions at Henkel,
Pirelh, Freudenberg and the SMS group He also serves as a Non-Executive Dirgctor of Altana AG and as a board
member in a number of pnivate corporations He ts a member of the Board of Trustees of European Business School's
Business Ethics Insttute

Shareholder

Clayton, Dubilier & Rice LLC, the manager of Clayton Dubiier & Rice Fund Vil LP, i1s considered to be the ulimate
controling party Fred Kindle, an operating partner at Clayton Dubilier & Rice, has oversight of the Company on behalf of
the fund Chnstian Rochat and Huw Phillips also represent Clayton, Dubilier & Rice
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Corporate governance

The Board 1s responsible for the strategic direction, development and control of the Company and there 1s a clear division
of responsibility between the Chairman and the Chief Executive  Fred Kindle of CD&R 1s the Chairman while Grant
Rumbles as Chief Executive has responsibility for implementing the plans and policies established by the Board

Board meetings are held quarterly and the Directors are supplted in a timely manner with information necessary to
discharge their duttes Directors may, from time to time in the furtherance of therr duties, take independent professional
advice at the Company's expense The Group has in place appropnate insurance cover for the Board members, In
respect of any legal action taken against them

The Directors have responsibility for consideration of matters including determunation of overall Group strategy, approval
of business plans, major capital investments, acquisitons and disposals, nsk management strategy, review of corporate
govemance policy and approval of the Annual Report & Accounts

The Board’s strategy 1s implemented by the Executive team compnsing senior executives of the business who assist the
Chief Executive in the management of the operations and development of the Group as a whole The Executve Team
have monthly meetings, charred by the Chief Executive and, additionally hold regular strategy sessions Detailed
operational activity ts the focus of dwisional operational boards

Board committees

The Board has established Audit and Remuneration Commuittees which meet quarterly Each committee has formal terms
of reference which are reviewed regularly by the Board Andrew Simon 1s the Charrman of the Audit Committee and Fred
Kindle s the Chairman of the Remuneration Commitiee




Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the annual report and Group and parent company financial statements In
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and Parent Company financial statements for each financial year
Under that law the Directors have elected to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with Internationat
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union (EU) and applicable law and have elected to
prepare the parent company financial statements in accardance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Under company law the Diwectors must not approve the Group financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
present fairty the financial posiion, performance angd cash flows of the Group for that penod

Under company law the Directors must not approve the parent company financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and far view of the slate of affars of the parent company and of the profit or loss of the company for that
pencd

in prepanng each of the Group and parent company financial statements the Directors are required to

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

* make udgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

+  for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the EU

+ for the parent company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,
subject to any matenal departures disclesed and explained in the financial statements

« prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless ¢ 1S inappropnate to presume that the Group will
continue in busiNess

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that are suffisent to show and explain the Group's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent company and enable
them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Compamies Act 2006 They have general responstbility for
taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud
and other ireguiantes

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for prepanng a Directors’ Report that complies
with that law and those regulations

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial information included on the
Company’s website Legsslation in the UK goverming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legislation in gther Junsdictions

By order of the board

s

G RUMBLES
Chief Executive Officer

7 Apni 2010
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Exova Group Limited
(Formerly CDR Tabasco Parentco Limited)

We have audted the financial statements of Exova Group Limited for the penod ended 31 December 2009 which
compnse the consolidated Balance Sheet, the Parent Company Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of
Comprehenswve Income, the consolidated statement of Cash Flows, the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and
the related notes 1 t0 24 to the consolidated financial statements and notes 1 to & to the parent company financial
statements The financial reporting framework that has been appled in the preparation of the Group financial statements
1s applicable law and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umion The
financal reporting framework that has been appled in the preparation of the parent company financial statements 15
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditer’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 17, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair iew Cur responsibility 15
to audit the financial statements in accordance with applicable iaw and Intemational Standards on Audittng (UK and
Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB’s) Ethical Standards for
Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficent to give
reasonable assurance that the financiat statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group's and the parent company's
crcumstances and have been consistently apphed and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements

Cpinion on financial statements
In our opimion

+ the financial statements give a true and farr view of the state of the Group’s and of the parent company's affairs as at
31 December 2009 and of the Group's loss for the penod then ended,

+ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union,

* the parent company financial staternents have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice,

+ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Comparues Act 2006

Opinton on other matters prescnbad by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the infermation given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the financal statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you
if, N our opiNion

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or retums adequate for our audit have not
been recewved from branches not wisited by us, or

+ the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums, or

»  certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* we have nof received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

fik b ‘low\a ne

ANNIE GRAHAM

{Senior statutory auditor)

For and on behalf of Emst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Edinburgh

7 Apnl 2010
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the period from incorporation on 10 October 2008 to 31 December 2009 2009
Before
Intangibles Intanglbles
amortlsation & amortisation &
restructuring  restructuring
costy costs Total
Continuing Operations Notas £m £m £m
Revenue 2 2689 - 268 9
Operating profit before restructuring costs 2 354 {113) 241
Restructuring costs 2 - {12.6) (126)
Operating profit 2 354 {23.9) 1135
Financa costs 5 (752) - (75 2)
Finance income 5 10 - 10
Loss before taxation (38 8) {23 9) (62 7)
Incoma tax [:] {8.5) 55 {3 0}
Logs for the peried (4T 3) {184) {65.7)
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations and related borrowngs 141
Net movement on cash flow haedges {0 6}
Other comprehensive income for the perlod 135
Totzl comprehensive income for the period {52.2)
{Loss) / profit attributable to
Equnty holders of the parent {672)
Minonty interests 15
Loss for the period 657
Comprehensive income for the period attributable to
Equity holders of the parent {7
Minonty intarests 15
Total comprehensive income for the penod {52 2)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

At 31 December 2009

Company Registration No 06720350

2009
Notes £m
Assets
Non-current assats
Property plant and equpmen 7 60 2
Goodwill 8 207
Intangtble assets 10 508
Gavemment grants i1t g4
Defermed tax asset 20 14
4425
Current assets
{mveniories 13 13
Trade and cther receivablas 14 472
Cash and short term deposits 18 259
T34
Total assets 515 9
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
{ssued share capital Pl kX
Foregn currancy translatton reserve 141
Hedging reserve {o 6}
Retained aarmings (67 2
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent (49 8)
Mmonty interests 54
Total Equity (44 4)
Non-current habilities
Financial kabities  external borrowings 18 2114
Financial habdites  loan due to parent undertaking 16 2484
Financial habiities  praference sharas 16 342
Financal liabiities - denvative financial instruments 17 20
Provisions 19 46
Deferred tax Eabilty 20 83
Other habilties a7
5186
Current liabilitles
Financial habities  external borrowings 16 21
Financial habilities  derivative fimanceal instruments 17 11
Trade and other payables 15 362
Current tax liabilies os
Provisions 19 18
n7
Total habilibes 560 3
Total equity and liabilites 5159

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 7 April 2010 and signed on its behalf by

74

G RUMBLES
Chig! Executive Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the period from incorporation on 10 October 2008 to 31 December 2009

2009

Note £m £m
Operating profit 15§
Deprectation of property, plant and equipment 7 16.9
Amortisation of mtangbles 10 13
Gamn on sale of property plant and equipment {06)
Government grants earned 11 24)
Operating cash flows betore movements In working capital 367
Decrease in inventories o7
Decrease in trade and other recervables and prepayments 102
Increase in provisions 15
Decrease In trade and other payables 27
Movements In working capital 87
Cash generated from operations 46 4
Interest pad (18 5)
Tax pard @an
Net cash tlows from operating activitiea 232
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 7 {14 4)
Purchase of iIntangible assets 10 an
Sale of property, plant and equipment 21
Acquisition of subsidianes, net of cash acquired 9 {420 5)
Interest receved 04
Net cash used In investing activities {433 5}
Net cash tlows before financing {410 3)
Financing activities
Proceeds from the ssue of ordinary shares 21 34
Proceeds from issue of preference shares 16 342
Proceeds from borrowings 2132
Loans recerved from parent undertakings 2078
Repayment of bank borrowings (65)
Loans repasd 1o minonty shareholders (04)
Debt 1ssue costs paxd (194)
Net cash inflow from financing activities 4328
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents 25
Cash and cash equivalents at incorporation .
Effects of exchange rate changes o7
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2009 16 232
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the period from incorporation on 10 October 2008 to 31 December 2009

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Foresgn
currency Total
Share captal and  translation  Hedging Retained shareholders’ Minonty Total
share premwm reserve  reserve earngs equity interests equity
Group Note £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At incorporation . - - - - .
({Loss} / profit for the perod - - - {67 2) (67 2) 15 {€57)
Other comprehensive incoma - 141 (06) 135 - 135
Total comprehensive income for the period - 141 (06} (67 2) (537 15 (52 2)
Shares tssued in the penod and
premizm on share issue 21 a8 - 39 - 39
Acquisition of subsidianes 9 - - - 39 39
At 31 December 2009 3.9 14 3 {0 6) {67 2) {49 8) 54 (44 4)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period trom incorporation on 10 October 2008 to 31 December 2003

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Exeva Group Limited (the Company™) is a company dormiclied and incorporated in the Unitad Kingdom The consolidated financial statements (the “financial statements”) of the
Company for the period trom incorpacaton on the 10 October 2008 to 31 December 2009 include trading actity for the 14 month and 15 day period from 17 October 2008 to 31
Detember 2009 and incorpovate the financial statements of the Comparny and s subsxlianes (1ogether refermed to as the "Group”)

Authonisation of financial statements and statement of comphance with IFRSs

The consolidated linancial statemnents have been prepared in accordance with Internatonal Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU ("adopted IFRSs®) The Cormparry
has elected 1o prepare its parent company financial statements in accordance with UK GAAP These are presented on pages 41 10 43

The consolidated finarcial statements were authonsed tor issue by the Board of Directors on 7 Aprl 2010

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for dervatve financ@! Instruments end Intangible assets acquired through business combinations  These
are stated at their fair vatue
The financial stataments have been prepared on a going toncem basis The reasons for this &re outlined in the Directors Hlepart and business review on page 10

The firancial statements are presentad i Pounds Steriing (£) and afl values are roundled to the nearest hundred thousand (£8 1m) except where otherwise indicated

Basis of consolidation

Subsidianes are entties controlled by the Company Gontrol exists when the Company has the power to, dwectty of Indirectly govem the financial and operaiing policies of an entity
so as to abtan benelits from its activities

The results of subsidiaries acquired or dispased of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up 10 the effective date
of disposal as appropriate Where necessary adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries acquired to bring the accounting policies used into line with those
used by the Group

All intra Group transactions, balances, income ard expenses are eliminated on consoldation

Minonty interests are stated at thewr proportion of the falr values of the assets and hatiliies recognised Subsequently, any losses appticable to the non-cantralling interests in
excess of the non-controling interest are allocated against the interests of the parent

The Company has a number of joint venture investments where ot effectve manag conuol end these are accounted for as subsidiaries

Foreign currency

temns included in the financial statements of:haGrnup.-.subssdnarymanlesaremeasureduslngmewnemyufmepmwyecomnﬂc ment in which the su ¥
operates {'the luncticnal currency’} The d financial s are p d i steriing which s the Company’s functional and presentational currency

Foreign currency transactions

Faoreign currency trangactions are translated into the functional currency of the Group using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions

Monetary assets and izbiites denominated in toreign cusrencies are translated at the rates of gxchange ruling &t the balance sheet date Difarences ansing on transiation are
charged or credited ko the income statement except when defarrad in equty as qualifying cash tiow hedges or qualitying net invesiment hedges

Foreign operations

The income statements of loreign subsidiary companles are translated into sterfing at monthly average exchange rates and the balance sheats are transiated at the exchange rates
ruling at the batance sheet date

Goodwll and fakr value adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a foresgn entity are treated as assets and labiites of the toreign entity and ranslated at the closing rate

Hedge of net investment in foreign operation

On consclidation, axchanga ditferances ansing from the ranslauon of the net investment in foregn subsidiaries and of borrowings designated as hedges of such mvestments are
taken to shareholders aquity These exchange differances are disclosed as separate compongnts of shareholders equity

Revenue recognition

Rendering of services

Revenua from the supply of testing services felatext o contract arangements s recogrused by reference 1o the stage of completion Stage of complation is measured by reterence
ta labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of total estmated labour hours for each contract Where the contract outcome cannot be measured rebably, revenug is recognised
only to the extent tha! the expenses ncurred are eligibia 10 be recovered

Revenue from testing activities
Reveriua from testing activites is recogrised when the 1est has been completed

Interest income

Interest wicoma is included in finance iIncome in the income statement

Research and development

Research costs are expensed as incured Development expenditure on an indmviduat project ts recogrised as an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate
- the technical leasibllity of completing the intangible asset 5o that it will be avadabie for uss,
its intention 1o complete and s abllty to use the asse!
how the asset will generate fuire economic benefit
the availabdity of resources to complete the asset and
the abiiity to measure refiably the expenditure during development.

Foﬂmmngmtﬁalrecognimnofuwdwehpnmﬂexperﬂmreasanasmmecoslmdelsapﬂwdreqmmasselmbecameda:msﬂsswmmﬂmdmmsamnw
accumulated impal N losses Ar non of the asse? begins when development 15 complete and the asset 1s avallable for use
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period trom incorporation on 10 Gctober 2008 to 31 December 2009

Restructuring costs
Separate disclosure of matenal restructunng costs has been provklad, detaling the naturg and amount of these costs

Retirement benefit obligations

Payments to defined contribubon retirement benefit schemes ara charged as an expense as they fall due Payments 1o state-managed retifement benefit schemes are dealt with as
payments to defined coninbution schemes where the Group s obiigaton under the schemes are equivalent o those arnsing in a defined cantnbution retirement benefit scheme

Finance income and finance costs

Finance ncome and finance costs which compnse interest expense on barrpwings are recognised on a time proportion basis using the effectve interest method

Income tax

The tax expense represents the sum of the current taxes payable and deferred tax

The current tax charge Is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date  Management penodically evaluates positions taken in
tax retums with respect to situations in which apphicable tax regulation is subject to interpretason and establishes provisions where appropnate on the basis of amounts expected to
be pawd 10 the tax authorites The tax charge 15 included in the income statement except it It relates to an item recogrused directly tn equity or other comprehensive income

Deferred tax 1s provxded using the kability method on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liatklites and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes Detarred income tax 15 determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantally enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected ka apply when the refated deferred income tax asset 1s realised Deferrexd tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be avatlable
agalnst which the temporary difierences can bg utlised

Deferred tax labiles are recogrised for all taxable temporary differences, except

where the deferred tax liabiity anses from the imibal recognition of goodwall or of an asset or hiability in a transaction that 1s net a business combination and at the Zime of the
transaction, aftects nether the accounting profit nor taxable proiit or loss

In respect of taxable temparary differences assoc:ated with Investments in subsidianes associates and interests in joint ventures where the uming of the reversal of the temporary
dilferences can be controlled and 1t is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the fareseeables tuture

Property plant and equipment
Ptaperty plant and equipment is shown at historical cost less subsequent depreciation and impairment

Cost represents invoiced cost pius any other costs that are directly attnbutable to the acquisition of the tem  The Group charges borrowang costs 10 the Income statement as they
arg incurrgd

No depreciation 1s provided on freehold land

Depraciabion 1s provided on & other property plam and equipment 10 wnte down ther cost of where therr useiul economic ives have been 1evised their carmying amount at the date
of revision o their estimated resklual values on a straight kne basis over the pencds of therr estimated of revised, remaning usefu! econemic Iives respectively  These lives are
considered to be

Freehold bulldings 50 years

Leasehold buidings Qver the penod of the lsase
Ptant and equipment Between 3 and 10 years
Information technology Between 3 and 5 years

The residual value and useful economic Iife are reviewed, and adjusted if appropnate at each balance sheet date
An asset s carnang amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount it the asset s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount

Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acgquisiton over the far value of the Group s share of the net enthable assets of the acquired subskliary at the date of acquisinion
Goodwill 1s not subject 1o annual armartisation but 1s instead tested annually for impairment and carrigd at cost less accumulated imparment losses

Goodwll 1s allocated 1o cash generating units for the purpose of impalment testng  The allocation is made 10 those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose

Other intangtble assets

Other intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amartisation and any recognised impairment losses

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on wnihizt recognition at cost  An intangible asset acquired in a business combination 15 fecognised as an intangible asset f itis
separable from the acquired bustness or anses from contractual or legal nghts is expected to generate fulure economic benefits and its far value can ba measured reliably

irtemalty generated miangibie assets, excluding capiiaiised development ¢OStS, are nol capialised and expendiure is 1efiecied n the Income stalement n the year in which the
expenditura s incurred

The expected usetul Ives of intangible assets are as tollows

Gustomer relationships Between 5 and 15 years
Trade names Between 5 and 15 years
Trademarks Between 5 and 15 years
Capitalised development costs 4 years
Computer software 3 years

The residual value and useful econormic life are reviewed, and adjusted # appropnate at each balance sheet date
Government grants

Government grants are recogrised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be receved and all attached condibons wilt be complied with  When the grant relates to
an expense tem it 1S recogrised as income over the period necessary to match the grant on a systematc basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from Incorporation on 10 October 2008 to 31 December 2009

Impairmenm

At each balance sheet date the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangibde and intangible assets to determing whether there is any indicabon that those assets have
suffered an impaument loss If any such indicabon exists the recoverable amount of the assat is estimated in order ta determune the extent of the Impaiment loss {if any} Where the
asset does not generata cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group esbmates the recoverable amount of the cash-generaing untt 19 which the asset belongs
Intanguible assats with indefirute usetul ives ncluding goodwil are tested lor imparment annually and whenever there 1s an indicavon that the asset may be imparred

Recoverable amount is the hagher of fair value less costs to sefl and value in use In assessing value inuse the estimated huture cash Sows are discounted 1o thewr present value
ustng a pre-tax discount rate that reflects curent markst assessments of the tme vatue of money and the nsks specic 1o the asset for winch the estmates of uture cash flows have
nat been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generatng unit) 1s estimated to be less than s carmying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generatng und) 1s reduced to
fis recoverable amount An imparment loss 1s recognised as an expense wmmediately, unless the relevant asset s carried at a revalued amount In which case the impaiment loss Is
treated as a revaluation decrease

Where an impaimment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying ameunt of the asset (cash-genaraung unit} is increased 10 the revised est:mats of ts recoverable amount. The
wcrease applied brings the revised camying value 1o an amaunt that does ot exceed the carrying amount that woukl have been determened had no impawment loss been
recogrised for the asset {(cash-generating unit) in prior years Goodwill impawments are never reversad

Inventories

Irventones ara valuad at the lower of cost and net realisable valua ‘Work in progress Is stated at cost of drect materiats and labour and a proportion of overheads based on normal
operating actvity Hut excluding borrowing costs

Trade receivables

Trade recsivables do not carry interast and are stated at the lower of therr original Invoicad value and recoverable amount  Balances are written off when the probatulity of recovery
15 855e336d BS being remote

Cash and shon term deposits

Cash and shor tarm deposits compnse cash at bank and in hand short term deposiis and other short term tughly hguid iInvestments with original maturities of thrée months or less
held for the purpose of meeting short term cash commuiments Bank overdrafts are presented i current llabiities to the extent that therg 15 ne nght of offset with cash balances

Borrowings

Borrowings are recogrised iniially at fair value, being the issue proceeds net of any ransaction costs incurrad

Bormowings are subsequenily measured at amorused cost using the effective interest method  Amnortised cost 3 adjusted for the amorisation of any transaction costs  The
amorgsation is recognised in finance costs

All borrowings denominated in currencies other than sterling are translated at the rate ruking at the balance sheet date

Borrowings are as currant

unless the Group has an uncondiional nght to defer setilement of tha iabiity lor at least twelve months after the balance sheet date

Preterence shares

Redecemabie praterence shares are classified as a financial ksbidity measured at amortsed cost unul it is extinguished on redemption

Leases

Rerals pad under operaung lkeases {those leases where & signiicant porton of the nsks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor} are charged to the income statement
over the term of the lsase

Provisions

A provisicn Is recognised in the balanca shaet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it Is probabla that an outliow of econemic
benefits will be required to settle the cbligaton It the effect Is materal, provisions are determined by discounting the futura expected cash flows at a pre tax rate that reflects the
cuerent marke! assessment of the trme value of money and where appropriate the trisks specific to the liabrity

Trade and other payables
Trade payables arg non interast beanng and are stated at amorused cost.

Financial instruments
Financlal assets

The Group s financial assets compnse ‘trade and other receivables and cash and shart tarm depesits in the batance sheet. Loans and receivables are non-cervative financial
assets with ficed or determinable payments that arg not quotsd in an active market  They are included in current assets except for matunties greater than 12 months after the
balance sheet date, which ara classifies as non current assets These assets are camed at amortised cost using the elfectrve interest method

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses detivative financial instruments to hagdge exposiire 10 changes in the value of spectlic assets, kahilities or cash flows |t does ot use denvative tnancial
mstruments for speculative purposes

Derivatves are intially recognised at far vale on the date a dertvative contract ts entered i and subsequently remeasured at far value  The method of recognising the resitung
gain of loss depends on whether the dervatrve 15 designated as a hedgng instnanent, and d so the nature of the item bewng bedged  The Greup designates certain denvatives as
erther

hedges of a particudar nsk associated with 2 recogrused asset or Eatiity or a tughly probable forecasted ransacton {cash flow hedge)
hedges of a nat investment w1 a foregn operabon {net investment hedga)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period trom Incorporation on 10 October 2008 to 31 December 2009

Denvative financeal instruments (continued)

The Group documents at the incepbon of the Tansaction the relationship between hedg:ng instruments and hedged tems, as wed as s risk management cbjectives and strategy for
undertalung vanous hedging Tansacbons The Group alse documents ©s assessment, both at hedge incepbon and on an engong basis of whether the denvatives that are used in
hedging transactons are hughly etfective in offseting changes in cash flows of hadged tems

The effective porton of changes in the tar value of cash fiow and net investment derivatves that ate designated ang qualify as hedges ara recognised in equity  The gam or loss
retating to the neftective porbon s recogrused immediately s net inance costs In the income statement.

The tull tar value of a hedging denvative is classifisd as a non-turment asset or bability when the remauung maturity of the hedged nem s mose than one year and as a curent asset
or llabdity when the remairung maturity of the hedged item is less than one year

Hedge accountng is discontinued when the Group revokes the hadging retztonship, the hedge instrument expires of 5 sold terunated, exercised or no longer qualifies for hedge
accountng Any curulative galn or loss previously recognisad in sther comprehansive income remains in other comprehensive Income until the forecast transacton of firm
commitrment atfects profit or loss

Equity instruments

An equity instrument Is any contract that evidences a residual Interest in the assets of the Group ahter deducting all of its labilibes Equity Insrumants issued by the Group are
recorded at the proceeds recetved net of drrect issus costs Financlal liabilities and equity instruments are classified according 1o the substance of the contractual arrangement
antered into

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the censolidated financial statements requires the Directors to make fdgments, estmates and assumptions that aftect tha application of policies and reported
armounts of assats and liablines Income and expenses The estimates and associated assumptions are gased on histonical experience and varnous other lactars that are believed to
be reasenable under the cucumstances, the resufts of which form the basis of making the judgments about carmyng values of assets and kabilites that are not readdy apparent from
other sources Actual results may ditfer from these estimates  Areas requiring the Directors 1o make judgments, estimates and assumptions are highlighted in these accounting
policies and throughout tha netes 10 the consclidated financial statements Key estimation and judgment areas are as follows

() Property plant and equipment
Depreciation rates are reguiarly reviewad to ensure they refiact eccurately useha lives and residual values are reviewed on an annual basis in kne with market conditions

() Other mtangitle assets
Amortsabon rates are regularly reviewed Lo ensure they reflect accuratety useful lives and ressual vatues are reviewed on an annual bas:s in ine with market concitions.

(i) Trade and cther recervables
The recoverability of trade and other recervables are kept undar constant review and provision s made where appropriate

{iv) Trade and other payables
Where the amount payable in respect of any liability Is uncertain, the amount provided in the accounts s based on the best estmate available at the ime

{v} impasment of goodwd
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suftered any imgairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated above The recoverable amounts of cash-generatng Linits
have been determnad based on valus-in-use cakulations These calcutations require the use of estmates as detaded in the financial statements

(v} Taxanon

The Group s suiject 10 income taxes in the various jurisdictions in which it operates Judgments are required in determining the consolidated provision for income taxes  Dunng the

ordinary course of business, there are ransacions and calculations for which the ulimate tax determination is uncertain - As a resuit, the Group recognises tax llabilltes for |
anbepated tax awdit issues based on estimates of whether addiional taxes witl be due  The amount of such llabilives 1s based on an assessment of vanious factors such as '
expenence of previous tax audits and diffenng interpretations of tax law This et relies on and assumptions and involves a series of complex judgments abeut I
future events  To the extent that the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amount recognised, such differences will impact the income tax and ceterred tax

provisions in the penod in which such datermunation is made

Standards and interpretations not yet effective and early adopted

In prepanng the Group financial statements for the current period, the Group has early adopted IFRS & "Operating Segments , effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1
January 2009 This new standard replaces tAS 14 “Segment Reporiing” and requires segmental information to be presented on the same basis that management uses to evaluate
performance of its reporting sagments in its managemant reporting Tha full disclasure requirements of IFRS 8 are presented in note 3 of the Group s financial statements

New standards and interpretations not yet effective
Standards 1ssued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Group 8 financial statements are listed below

Internationsal Accounting Standards (IASAFRS)

Improvements to IFRS (issued 16 Apnl 2009 not yet adopted for use In the European Union) effectve tor penods commencing 1 July 2009

IFRS 1 {Amendment) Limited Exempton from Comparativa IFRS 7 disclosures 15 effectve for penods on or after 1 July 2010
IFRS 2 {Amendment} Share Based Payment Vesting Conditions and Gancell 18 effective for penods on or atter 1 January 2006
IFRS 2 (Amendment) Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transacbons is effectrve for penods on or after 1 January 2010
IFRS 3 Business Combinations (Revised) is etfactiva for annual periads on or after 1 July 2009
*iFRS 8 Fmancial Instruments G Hication & M ent is off for penods on or after 1 January 2013
1AS 1 {Amendment) Presemtation of Financial Statements A Revised Presentaton 1s effective for perods commencing on or after 1 January 2009
1AS 23 (Amendment) Bormowing Costs Is effective tor perods commencing on or after + January 2009
"IAS 24 {Revised) Related Party (isclosures s etfectiva tor periods on or after 1 January 2011

IAS 27 *Consoldated and Separats Financial Staterments (Revised) is effective tor annual penods on or after 1 July 2008

IAS 32 {Amendment) Financial instrsments Presentauon is elfective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2009

IAS 32 (Amendment) Classiicaton of Right Issues’ is eflective for annual periods on or atter 1 February 2010 !
IAS 39 (Amendment) Eligible Hedgad ttems is effective for annua periods on or after 1 July 2009 !

ng! F Reporting tnterp| [~ (IFRIC)
IFRIC 9 & 1AS 39 (Amendment} Embedded Dertvatves s effactive for periods on or after 30 June 2009
IFRIC 14 (Amendment) Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement' s effective for penads on or after 1 January 2011
IFRIC 15 Agreements for Construction of Real Estates ls etiactive for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2009
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operabion is effective for peniods commencing 30 June 2009
IFRIC 17 Distnbution of Nonrcash Assets 16 Owners s eftective for annual penods on or after 1 .Juty 2009
IFRIC 18 "Transfers of Assets from Customers s effective for annual periods on or after 1 July 2009
*IFRIC 19 Extnguishung Financial Liakiities with Equity Instrumnents s etfective tor penods on or after 1 July 2010

The above standards and interpretations will be adopted in accordance with thew effective dates and have not been adopted in these financ:al statements The directors do not
expect any of these standards and interpretatons 10 have a material impact on the Group s consolidated financlal statements in the penod of intial application

“not yet adopted for use In the European Union
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ftrom i poration on 10 October 2008 to 31 D«

2 OPERATING PROFIT

Before
restructuring Restructuring Total
2009 2009 2009
fm £m 'm
Revenus 2689 2668
Costof sales {175 6) {175 6)
Groas protlt 933 k]
Cther income 35 35
Seling and administrative expenses {72 7) {12 6) {85 3)
Cperating profit 24 1 (12 6) 115
2009
Group operating profit 13 armved at alter charging / {crediting) fm
Cost of sales
Depreciaton ot property, plant and equ:pment 150
Other operating lease rentals payable
plant and machinary 18
property 102
Aeparrs and maintenance expenditure on propety, plant and equipment 54
Other incoms
Govemnmant grants {24)
Rantal Income an
Selling and administrative expenses
Depraciation of property, plant and equipenent 19
Amorisation of intangible assets 13
Audlt services
The Group pald the following amounts to its auditors in respect of the audit of tha financial statements and for other audit services provided to the Group 2008
Audit £m
Audit of the Group financial s 02
Other toes
Other services relating to taxaton ué
Corporate finance faes [E]
11
* £5 000 of thus relates to the Company
In addition to the above, during the penod the Group pakd amounts 1o its auditors in respect of corperate finance tees which have been capitalised as fnancing costs of £0 8m
Restructuring costs
2008
Restructunng costs are analysed as follows. £m
Redundancy costs 04
Other re-organisauon costs 13
Aebranding costs 19
128
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3 SEGMENTAL REPORTING

For management purposes, the Group is erganised info busess units based on their products and services and has thiee reponable operating segments bewx) Ewrope Amencas and
Middle East’Asia Pactfic Pages 510 7 of the operating review included wathun the busimness reviaw provides informabon on how the bustness is managed and the three operating segments
pertormance measures

Maragement monztors the eperatng resits of its business umits separately lor the purpese of making decisions about resource alk and perft nent Segment
performance 1s evaluated based on EBITDA befors restructunng costs and management tee to private equity investor and is measured consistently with EBITDA before restructunng costs
and management fee to pmvate eqenty ivestor in the consofidated financial statements  However Group knancing {including finance costs and finance income) and INComes 1axes arg
managed on a group basts and are not allocated to operating segments

Transfer prces between operaiing segments are on an arm s length basis n a manner simédar 1o ransachions with tfurd parties and inter segmernt revenues are elirwnated on consoldaton

Middle East/
Europe Americas Asla Pacitic Ellminations Unatlocated Total
2009 2009 2009 2009 2009 2009
For the year ended 31 December 2009 £m £m tm £m £m £m
Operations
Revenue - extemal customets 1361 826 402 2689
Féveriue - mter business segments o7 - 0n -
Total revenue 138.8 92.6 402 on - 2689
Segmenta! EBITDA betore restructuring costs
and management fee to private equity investor 253 175 10.2 - 3.0
Management tee to prvate equity vestor o4 L] ton o7
Depractation {71} {7 4) (24) {169)
Amortisabon of itangiblg assets {54) {35 (243 {113
Segmental operating protit before restructuring costs 124 64 53 241
Restructunng costs {68) {30} {07) 21) {12 6)
Segmental operating profit 56 4 48 - {21) 115
Finance costs (752} 753
Fnance nicome 10 10
Profit{(loss} before tax 56 24 46 - (76 3) (627
Income tax {390) 39
Protiti(loss) for the period 56 34 46 - 79 3) {657)
Segment assets 2245 1723 928 489 6
Unallocated assets
- deferred tax asset 14 14
cash and cash equivalents 249 249
Total assets 2245 1723 g28 - 283 5159
Segment habiites (34 3) o7 73 (523)
Unallocated habiihies
- financial habiliies  external borrowings (213 5) {213 5)
- financial labilites loan due to parent undertaking (248 4) {248.4)
- financial habiwes  peeference share capital {34 2) (342)
- financial habiles  derrvabive financal INstruments {31) 31
- deterred tax iablity 83 8.3]
- current tax {0 5) {0 5)
Total llabilities (34 3) (10 7) 73 {508 0) {560 3)
Other segment ltems
Capital expenditura {property, plant and
equipment) 55 34 556 144
Impairment of trade recenvables 07 oS 12 24

Allocated segment assets comprse goodwill of £320 7m intangule assets of £50 8m property, plant and equipment of £60 2m, inventories of £1 3m, government grants of £9 4m and trade
and cther recervables of £47 2m.

Allocated segment labifiies compnse trade and other payables ol £42 4m peovisons of £6 4m and other liabiites ot £3 5m

The revenue analysis in the iables above 1s based on the locaton of the customer which 15 not materially different trom the locabon where the order is received and where the assets are
located

Nen-current

Revenues axsets

Geographical anatysis £ £m
UK 658 118.7
Canada 537 1140
USA 389 628
Orther countnes indnaduatly less than 10% of total revenue / non-current assets. 1097 1470
263 9 442.5

The ravenue above ts based on the locabon of the customer
Non-current assets compase property plant 2nd equipment, goodwill intangible assels nor-current government grants &nd non-current deferred tax assets
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4 STAFF COSTS

2009
Aver, number of dwectors) employed by the Group dunng the penod Number
Production 2978
Selkng and adrunistration 07
3,685
2009
£m
The costs incurred in respect of these employees were

Wages and salaries 1185
Soclal security costs 14
Defingd contribubon Penson cogis 41
1350
2009
Directors_remunaration trm
Salanes and short term benefits 0.5

Comparty pension contributions of £8,000 were made on behalf of Directors qualitying services

Detined contribution pension schemes

The Group cperates a definec contribution scheme n the UK The assets of this scheme are held separately from those of the Group being Invested in funds under the control of a number

of insurance companies The pension charge includes gontributions payable by tha Group t¢ the varlous insurance companies

5 NET FINANCE COSTS

2008
£m
Finance costs
Bank loans 2.4
Loan owed to parent undertaking 407
Preferance share dividend 62
Inetiectivenass on cash flow hedges 25
Other igans and charges 06
AT 1 of debt issue costs 24
Total finance costs 752
Finance Income
Interest income cn shart term deposits {02)
Other interest recaivable 08
Total inance income 10)
6 INCOME TAX
a} Current year tax charge 2009
The taxation charge far the peried comprises £m
Current tax
Income tax
UK -
overseas 20
Total current tax 20
Deferred taxation
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences
e 193}
- overseas 13
Totat deterred tax 10
Total incoma 1ax expense 30
There (s na tax recorded in other comprehansive incame
A reconctiation of the total tax charge for the penod compared 1o the effective standard rate of corporation tax is summansed below
2009
fm
Loss on ordinary activites befora tax {62.7)
Tax at 28% {17 6)
Effects of
Permanent difterences ansing from UK and overseas operations 10
COther non-daductiie expenses 18
Current year krsses unrefioved 78
Total charge lor the year 30

The Group has 1ax lesses of £24 Om which arose in vanous jurisdictions that are available for olset against future taxable profits of the comparues in which the losses arose  The majority

of the losses are avallable for carry forward indefinitely  The jurisdictions affected are UK {£14 5m) USA (£6m) Sweden {£2 5m}) and Saudi Arania (£11)

Detferred tax assats have not been recognised 1n respect of thesa losses as they may not be used to offset taxable profits elsewhere in the Group and it is nat sufficiently certain that these

fosses will be vtlised agamnst futura peofits
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and Plant and
buildings equipment Total
Group £m £m £m
Cost
At incorporation -
Acquisiion of subsidianes (see note 9) 178 425 6023
Exchange adjustments 11 28 39
Addihons 16 128 144
Drsposals (1) (L 22)
At 31 D ber 2009 194 570 764
Accumuiated depreciation
Al Incorparation -
Gharge for the penod 15 154 169
Disposals {€1) {0 6) 07
At 31 December 2009 14 148 162
Net book value at 31 December 2009 180 422 602
2009
Landg and busddings comprise £m
Cost
Freehold 108
Long leasshold a5
Short leasehotd 19
262
Accumulated depreciation
Freehold 29
Lang leasehokd 15
Shor lsasehold 38
82
Security
Borrowirigs have been provided by a banking syndicate who have security over the assets of the matenal entities of the Group
8 GOODWILL
Group £m
Cost and net book value
At sncarparation -
Acquisiticn of subsidiaries {note 9) a9
Exchange adjustment 188
At 310 ber 2009 3267
Goodwll is aflocated to the group s cash-generating units (CGUs) dentified according to operating segment A summary of the garrying amounts of goodwll by operating segments
{representing groups of cash generating urits) 1s presented below
2009
£m
Europe 1485
Americas 1068
Middle East / Asla Pacltle 644
At 31 December 2009 azh7

The goodwill relates to the acquisihion of the testing business of Bodycote pic as detaled innote 9

Impainment reviews

Goodwilt has been tested for impairment by companng the carrying amount of each cash-generating unit ("CGU™) inctuding goodwll with the recoverable amount The recoverable
amounts are determined from value-in-use caloulatons

The key assumgnions tor the valug-in-use calculations are those regarding operating margin, discount rates and growth rates The operating margn is based on past perfoermance and
management's expectations of cost savings as set out in the latest farecasts for the next five years for the CGLIs approved by management and the discount rate reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the CGUs The Group prepares cash flow farecasts derrved from the most recent financial forecasts approved by
management and extrapolates cash flows for the tollawing years based on the iong term growth rates The Group s long-term growth rates reflect industry expenence by geographic area
creating an average estmated Group growth rate ot 3 0% The pre-iax rate used to discount the cash flows i1s the Group s weighted average cost of capial of 10 1% The charactenstics of
the CGUs are largely surutar to each other and therefore the same pre-tax weighted average cost of capital and long term growth rates have been applied to each CGU

Impairment reviews were camied out at the year end by companng the carmang value of goodwill with the recaverable amount of the CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated
Management determuned that there has been no impayment

A sensitivity analysis has been performed in assessing recoverable amounts of goodwill

There is no reasonable possible change to a key assumption which would cause the recaverable amount o fall below the carrying amount for any CGU
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9 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

On 17 October 2008 Exova Limited (formerly COR Tabasco Limsted) a wholly owned subsidiary company of Exova Group Limied (formerly CDR Tabasco Parentco Limited) acguirec

100% ot the tesung business of Bodycote pic

Goodwill
to the group
Detayls of the goodwill and net assets acquired are as follows £m
Purchase constderation
Cash pad 4187
Direct costs relating (o the acquishon 143
Total purchase consideraticn 4330
Farr value of net assets acquired {1311)
Goodwlil (note B) a9
Carrying Recognised
values on acquisition
The assets and labiktres ansing from the acquisiion are determined as follows £fm £m
Non-current asssts
Property ptant and equipment 852 603
Intangible assets 34 575
tnvestments 01 01
Govermment grams 57 57
Deterred tax asset 04 14
Curreni assets
Inventones 69 15
Trade and other recervables 531 529
Government grants 05 05
Cash and shor term deposits 125 125
Non-current liabilities
Provisians 48)
Other liabilities 22 1
Deferred tax hability {18) {8.2)
Current liabilities.
Trade and other payables {32 1) {382)
Cusrent tax liabilues 23) 28)
Othar lcans and borrowings (13) {13}
1131 1350
Mingnty interests (39) {39)
Net assets 109 2 1311
The net outflow of cash in respect of this acquistion was as follows £m
Purchase consideratian sefled in cash 4330
Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiary acquired {12 5)
Gash outflow on acquisiion 4205

Goodwill represents the opportunity to improve the financial and operational pertormance of the business in a number of ways
Brnnging together a large Group of individual laboratones as a more cohesive business under a new identity

Making the business more market focused crass fertlising between laboratonies servicing similar market sectors and improving the sales and marketing organisation
Utiksing a large, skilled workforce to establish best operating practice and transternng knowledge across the Graup

Reducing costs by removing unnecessary layers of management

Closing underperforming sites and consokdating smaller sites into larger more efficient umts

Improving working capital management

Due ta their nature the value of these Intangible assets cannct be ndividually separated and reliably measured
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10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS Capitalisad
Customer Trade develop P

relationships names Trademarks costs software Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m m
Cost
Al incorparaton - -
Exchange movement 34 o1 - a5
Asquisibon of subsidianas (note 8) 560 04 05 06 578
Additons - 03 +]:] 11
At 31 December 2009 59.4 05 0.5 0.3 14 62.1
Accumutated amortisation
Al Incorporaton - - -
Charge for the penod 105 03 o1 04 11.3
At 31 D ber 2009 10.5 03 01 - 04 1.3
Net book value at 31 D ber 2009 48.9 02 04 03 1.0 50.8

The intangibe assets primarily represent the fair value of customer ralatonships which were in place at the date of acquistten 'We dase gur valuation on the expected future cash fiows

using the Mutt-Period Excess Earnings approach This method employs a discaunted cash #low analysis using the present value of the estimated after fax cash flows expected to be

generated from the purchased intangible asset using risk adjusted discount rates and revenue torecasts as appropriate The discount rate applied in the valuation was the weighted cost o}

capital of 10 1%
11 GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Group £m
At incorporabon

Acquisibon of subsxianes (note 9) 6.2

Exchange adjustment 1.2

Amount earned in the penod 24

Utilised during the pened {0 4)
At 31 Decembet 2009 H4
Current

Nor-current 94

At 31 December 2009 94

Government grants are recervable In relation 1o research and development expenditure
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12 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

A st of the signdficant nvestments in subsidianes, including the name, country of incorporation Country of Principal Activity Percentage
and proporton of ownership interes: is grven below Incarporation holding
Subsidiary Undertakings
Exova Topcs Limited {Formerty COR Tabasco Topen Limited) UK Hedding 100%
Expva Hoklings Limited (Formerty CDR Tabasco (Heldings) Limited) UK Holding 100%
Exova Limated {formery CDR Tabasce Limited) UK Holding 100%
Exova Group {UK} Limrted {formerly Bodycote Tesung Group Limuted) UK Hokding 100%
MTS Pendar Leruted UK Holding 100%
Warnington Fize Research Group Lid UK Holding 100%
Exova (UK) Lutnted (formerly Bodycote Testing Lisied) UK Testing 100%
Exova Wamngton Fire Consuttng (Guemsey) Lid {tormerly Bodyoote Warfington Fire
Consutting (Guemsey) Lid} UK Testng 100%
Warmngten Fire Research Gent NV Belgum Testing 100%
Exova Sro (formerly Bodycote Maeriats Tesung Sra) Czech Republic  Tesung 100%
Exova Metech AS (formerly Bodycota Metech AS) Denmark Testing 100%
Exava Metech Oy {tormerly Bodytote Metech Qy) Finland Testng 100%
Exova SA (lormerly Cantech SAS) France Tesung 100%
Exova (Hokiings } GmbH (farmerty Bodycote Testing Holdings GmEBH) Germany Hakding 100%
Exova Metech GmbH {formerty Bodycota Metech GmbH) Germany Testing 100%
Exova GmbH {formerty Badycote Tesung GmBH) Germany Testing 100%
Exova (lreland) Limuted {formerly Bodycote Consultus Limitad) Ireland Testng 100%
Exova Metlab Limited {formerly Matlab {International) Limsted) lretand Testing 100%
Exova 5 {formerly Bodycota Materials Testing Sr) bty Testing 100%
Gentro Triveneto Richerche Sr Italy Tasting 100%
Componants Stability Assessment S taly Testing 51%
Exova BV (formerly Bodycota Materlals Testing BV ) Netherlarxis Testung 100%
Exova {Holdings) B V (formerty Bodycote Matenals Testing Europe B V) Netherlands Helding 100%
Exova Rotterdam BV {farmerly Rotterdam Painting Consultants B V) Netherlands Tesung 100%
Exova A/S (formerly Bodycote Materials Testing A'S) Norway Testing 100%
Exova (Sweden) Haldlngs AB (formerly CDRT (Sweden) AB) Sweden Hoxding 100%
Exova AB (formerly Bodycote Materlals Testing AB) Sweden Testing 100%
CSM NDT Gertificabien AB Sweden Tasting 100%
Exova Metech AB (tormerty Bodycote Metech AB) Sweden Testing 100%
Exova (US) Hokiings Inc {formerly CDR Tabasco (US) Inc) us Hokilng 100%
Exova In¢ (formerly Bodycote Materlals Testing inc) us Testng 100%
Exova {Canada) Inc {formerly Bodycote Canada Inc) Canada Testing 100%
Exova Property Hokdings Inc (lormerly Bodycote Property Hokings Inc) Canada Testing 100%
Exova (Mexico) Testing Inc {lormerly Bodycote Matenals Testing de Mexico SRL de CV) Mexico Testing 100%
Exova Wamngtonfire Middia East LLG {{omerty Bedyeeta Warmngton Fire Middle East LLC) Cubai Testng 49%
Al Futtasm Exova LLG (formerty Al Futtaim Bodycate Testing LLC) Dubal Testing 4%
Expva Limited & Co LLG {formerly Bodycote Materials Testing Services Limsted & Co LLC) Oman Testing 70%
Exova (Qatar) LLC {formerty Bodycote Materlals Tesung Services LLGC) * Qatar Testing 24 5%
Exova (Saudi Araxa) Limited (lormerty Bodycote Testing Saudi Arapia Ltd LLC) * Saud) Arabla Testing 50%
Exova Warnngton Aus Pty Limited {formarly Bodycote Warnngton Fire (Aus) Pty Ltd) Australia Testing 100%
Exova {Cayman) Limited (tormerly Bodycota Testing Cayman Limited} Cayman Islands Testing 100%
Exova Warmingtoniie HK Limitad (formarty Warnngton Fire Research (Asia Pacilic) Lid} Hong Kong Testing 100%
Exova (Singapore) Pte Limited {formerty Bodycote Testing Singapore Pio Limited) Singapora Testing 100%
These comparues are treated as subsidiaries in the resuits of the Group as effective control over thew op 1s exists as described n the sh and gement services

egreements with the relative parties
ﬂmCompanyistahmmexemptbnavaﬂabbmﬂaSecmnﬂGmmecmvamummmorwmsclosepnmpalsubsidiaﬂes

Exava Topeo Lumsted shareholding are hekd dwectly whist all others are held through wholly owned subsidianes

13 INVENTORIES

Work In progress
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14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2009
fm
Trade recelvables 410
Less prowision for impairment of receivables (2 %)
Net trade receivables 386
Other receivables LT ]
Prepayments 3.2
472
The average credit penod on sales was 62 days
Analysts of Wada recervables Em
Nesther impaired nor past due 243
Past due but not impared 143
Impaired 24
410
2009
The ageing of past due but not impalred trade recetvables fm
Up to 3 months 128
Owver 3 months 15
143
2009
Movements on the provision for impawment of trade receivables £m
At incorporation -
Acquisiban of subsidianes ar
Exchange adjustment 02
Provision for recervables impairment {0.9)
Amaunts recavared dunng the peried {0.4)
Receivabies written off during the period ag uncollactibl {02)
At 31 Decamber 24
2009
Ageing of impaired trade racevables £m
Up to 3 months 02
Over 3 months 22
2.4
15 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2009
fm
Trada payables 11
Other taxes and socwal security A6
Other payatlas S0
Accruals 125
362
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16 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Amounts talling due in Total
more than one
less than one year year 2009
£m £m £m
Bank overdralts 17 1T
Acquisionts / Capex tacility o0 81 93
Meazzanine debt facility q0 87 5e.7
Seruor bank loans 24 1576 160.0
Loan due 1o mincrity shareholdars 0c0 10 10
Debt Issue costs {2 0) {150) (170)
Financial liabiites  external bormowings 21 2114 2135
Financial labites loan due to parent undertaking 2484 2484
Financial labikbes preference shares u2 34.2
21 494 0 4385.1
The foflowing analysts detaills outs! g barr gs, the ¥ avaitable to the Group and the undrawn amounts at the balance date
Amounts falllng due in Total
leas than  betwean one  between two and
ong year  and two years five years  atter five years 2009
Maturity £mn £m £m £m £rm
Cash a1 bank {24 9) - {24 9)
Bank overdrafts 17 - 17
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash fow siatement {232) - - {3.2)
RAavolving cred:t facility . -
Acquistions / Capex facility 68 23 1
Mezzanine debt factity - 587 58.7
Senior bank loans. 24 82 293 1201 1600
Loan due to parent undertaking - 2484 2484
Preterance shares 342 M2
Loan dusa to menority shareholders - 10 1.0
Debt issue costs {20} (20) 59 {7 1) {17 0}
(22.8) 6.2 302 4576 4712
Undrawn tacllities
Bank overdrafts a3 8.3
Regvolving credit facility 2590 250
uIsmons / x facility 09 a9
Total faciiies 105 71 32 457 6 505 4
Preterence Shares
Authorised
50,000,000 preterence shares of £1 each 50 0
Allotted issued and hlly pad
34,216,455 preference shares of £1 each 342

During the period 34 216 459 £1 preterence shares were issued for £1 each

A1 31 December 2009 there wera 34 216 459 redeemable preference shares on issug Each share has a par value of £1 and has no fixed redempton date The preference shares carry a
dividend o! 15% per annum payabla annually in arrears on 31 December The dvidend rights are cumulatve The preference shares rank ahead of the ordinary shares in the event of a

liquidation
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17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management objsctives & policies

The Group Board has the responsibllty for setting the financial risk management policies appfied by the Group  The policies are implemented Ly the central treasury department which
recenves regular reports from the opérating comparies to enable prompt ientification of financial nsks so that the appropniate actions may be taken

{i} Foreagn exchanga rsk policy
The Group has operanons in 24 countries and s posed (o foregn exchapge tansiaion nisk when the profits and net assats of these entiies are consobdated into the Group
ACcounts

Assets are partafly hedged where appropriate, by matching the currency of borowings to the net assets of the subsicianes
It 1s Group policy not to hedge the translational exposure ansing from profit and loss tems

Transacton foreign exchange expasures anse when entities within the Group enter into contracts to pay ar receve funds in a cutency different trom the functional currency of the entity
concemed

It s Group policy that all operating units elimenate exposures on matenal commytted transactions usualty by undertasang forward foreign currency contracts through the Group s treasury
tunction

However the naturg of the business 18 such that cross border sales and purchases are limrted and, other than currency interest such exposures are immaterial for the Group
(s} intergst rafe sk polcy

The Group s borowings are at variable rates of interest  Interast rate nsk is regularly monrtored to ensure that the mix of vanable and fixed rate borrowng ts appropriate for the Group in
the short to medwm-term. Interest rate swaps are utlised that have the econgme: effect of convertng berrgwings from floasng to fixed rates  Asthe balance sheet date approximately 87%
of vanabia rate debt had been converted to fixed rate through the use of floating 1o fixed interest rate swaps

i) Crecit sk posicy

Concentrations of credit nisk with respect 10 trade recetvablas ara limited dug to the Group s custorner base being large and urrelated Consequently management believe there is no
turther credit risk provision requwed In excess of a normal provigion for doubtful recelvables Theretors the maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date 1s the far value of each
class of recevable

The Group's exposuré to credt risk is influenced mawnly by the indmdual charactensics of each cusicmer and before accepting any significant new customer, the Group uses an extemnal
credit scoring system to assess the patental customer’s credit quality and defines credit limuts by the customer Limits and scoring attnibuted to customers are reviewed once a year

The gaographic prefile of credlt risk aver the penod of these linancial statéments Is broadly in line with that of revenue in note 3
{v) Liquidy nsk pokcy

The Group actively maintains a méxture of long-term and short term commutted facilibes that are designed to ensure the Group has sutficlent avaiabla funds for extsting operations and
planned expansions

Management maniters rolling forecasts of the Group s liquidity reserva (compnising undrawn borrow:ng facility and cash and cash aqunvalents {note 18)) on the basls of expected cash flow
Thrs is generally carned out a local level in the operating companias of the Group in accordance with practica ano imits set by the Group  These imis vary by location to take into account
the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates In additien the Group $ liquidity management policy involves projecting cash tows in mapr currencles and consedenng the level of
hquid agsets necessary to meet these, monitgding balance sheat hquidity ratios against internal and ¢xternal requirements and maintaning debt financing plans

The Group has no denvative linancial instruments which will be setled on a gross basts
{v) Net investment 1 forexgn operahions

EUR variable loans included in mnteres: bearing koans and borrowings amountng te EUA32m, USD vanable loans included in Interest bearing loans and borrowings, amounting to
USD104m SEK varlable loans included in interest bearing loans and barrowings amounting to SEK285m ard CAD vanable loans included in interest bearing loans and borrowings
amounting to CAD5S0m have been designated as a hedge of the Group s exposure to translatonal foreign exchanga risk on s net investments i loreign operations Gans or losses on the
retranslabon of the borrowings are transferred to equity to offset any gains or losses on translabon of the net investments i these subsihanies

Canrying amounts & falr values
Set out delow |8 a companson by category of carrying amounts and tay values of el the Group s financial instruments that are carnied in the financal statements

Carrylng amount Fair value
2009 2009
£m £m
Amortised costs
Mon-derivative financial assets
Trade recervables "o 1o
Cash and short term deposits {24 9) (24 9)
Non-derivative financial llabilities
Trade payables and accruals 236 a6
Bank overdraft 17 17
Revoiving credit facilty - -
Acquistion/Capex facility 91 91
Senwgr bank loans 160 0 1600
Mezzarune debt facility 58.7 58.7
Loan due to parent undertaking 2484 240.4
Preference shares u2 Uz
Loan dus to minonty sharehokders 10 10
Falr value through profit and loss
Oerivative Hnancial liabilities
Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges 31 31
4738 473 9

Tha tair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated hiure cash flows  The carmng amount of other linanclal nstruments of the Group ie trade
recevables and payables that are inciuded i the zbove table Is a reasonable approximatcn of far value

Tha tar value of all other tems has been calcutated by discounting the expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates.
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17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {¢continued)
Liquidity and credit risk

The Group manages Gquidity nsk by maintamng adequate banking tacilites, by contnugusty mondoany forecast and actual cash flows and matchung the matunty profiles of financial assets
and liabilites The Group has at its dispesal Rddiucnal undrawn tacilies which funher raduces the bquidity nsk and is disclosed above

Tha following analysis detais the contractual matures af financial llabilibes at the balance sheet date including interest and prncipal cash flows using undiscounted cash flows
Amounts talling due Total

inlessthan betwoenone between two and

ona year and two years five yeara  after tive years 2009
At 21 D ber 2009 £m £m £m £m £m
Amortlsed costs
Non-derivative financial liabllities
Trade payables and accruals 238 - 236
Bank pverdrafts 17 - 17
Acquisthon/Capex facility 07 07 Be 28 128
Servor bank loans 32 188 800 1482 2402
Mezzanine debt faciity 46 46 139 1217 1448
Loan dug 10 parent undertalung . - 9228 9228
Preference shares 1560 1400
Loan dus 10 minonty shareholders - 21 21
Falr valua through Income statement
Darivative tinancizl Habilities
Interest rate swaps used for hedging 11 15 05 31
449 256 83 2 1,337 4 1,491 1
Interest rate risk
The following table sets out the carrying amount of the Group s inanclal instruments and notonal value of denvatves that are axposed to Interest rate nsk.
Fixedrate  Floating rate  Notlonat Interest Cash at bank Total
Nat Debt Net Debt Rats Swaps
2009 2009 2009 2009 2009
£m £m fm £m £m
Curmency and Interest rate profie
Currency
Sterkng 2826 686 13 (34) a9
Euro 287 06 21) 272
US dollar 644 10 03) 651
Canadian dallar 292 - (20} a7 2
Swedish krona 218 a2 {16) 2602
UAE dirham 10 - (70} {60}
Qatar riyal - {51) {51)
Otbar {34} {3.4}
283 6 2125 31 (a8 4743

interest on knancial inszurnems classdies as ed rate s treed untl the maturty of the instrument  Interest on financial instruments classihed as fioating rate is repneed Bl inervals of less
than one year The other financtat instruments of the Group that are not included in the above tabie are non-interest bearing and are therefore not subject to interest rata nsk

The lollowing tabia demonstrates the sensitvity to a reasonably possible change i interast rates, with all other vanables held constant of the Group s profit before tax and equity through
the Impact on floating rate borrowangs and interest zate swaps There Is no impact on the Group s equity with the exception of the Group s interest rate swaps

Increase in basis Etffect on protit Ettect on

points before tax equity
2009 gainfloss) geinftioss)
Group €m £€m
Canadian doltar +100 03 -
Eurg +100 {0 6) 04
Swedish krona +100 03) ©3
UK sterling +100 an (10
US dollar +10¢ {16) (10

A decrease ot 100 basis pownts woulkd have an equal and oppesite effect

The Group utiises interest rate swaps to convert bormowangs drom floating to fixed rares of interest  These interest rate swaps are subpect to cash flow hedge accounting elfectiveness
testing
The net carrying amount matunty dates and the amounts recognised for tha penad 1n profit or loss and equity for each derivative tinancial Instrument are $et out below

Net Maturity  Recognised in  Recognised in

carrylng amount dates profit or loas equity

2009 £m gaini{loss) gainf(loss)
Group £m £m
Interes! rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges 31 201 (2.5} {06}

The Group ¢ intarest rate swaps were partially deemed wneffective dunng the penod resulting in & ¢harge 1o the income statement of £1 m
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17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)
Foreign exchange risk

The Group considers the most signficant foreign exchange nsks relate 1o the Canadian dollar Eure Swedish Krona US dollar UAE diham and Qatar nyal The followng table
demonstrates the sensimity to a reasonably possible change in these foreign currency exchange rates with all other vanables held constant  The sensitivity analys:s shows the etfect on
proft or koss and equity In respect of assets and labilites unhedged by instruments qualifying as net invesiment hedges and the translation of foreign subskliary results denomunated n
these foreign currencies

Increase in Eftect on profit Eftect on
cumency rate after tax equity
2009 loss gaini{loss)
Group £m £m
Canadian doltar +25% (0.8) (16 6)
Eura +25% {0 9) (54)
Swedish kuona +25% {03 H2
US dollar +25% {05) 22
UAE dirham +25% (an e n
Qatar riyal +25% {06) {5.3)

A decrease of 25% In the currency rate woukl have an equal and opposite effect

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year

Average rate Closing rate

Ewra 11330 11255
US doltar 15625 16149
Canadian dollar 18001 16930
Swedish krona 11 9656 11 5302
UAE dirham 57405 59316
Qatar riyal 5 6987 5 8040

18 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group s capital managerment 1 to ensure that it maintans healthy capital raties In orcer to SUPpOr! its business and maxinuse shareholder value The Group
manages s capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the fight of changas in economic conditions

As the Company 1s a private equity backed business the loan due 1o parent undertaking 1s considered to represent equity rather than debt n the consideration of capital management

The Group monitars capital using the following indicators

Gearlng ratlo
Gearing compnses net debt, excluding loan due to parent underiakung, preference shares and denivative financial instruments divided by total equity including loan due to parent
undertaking and praference shares Net debt compnses cash and short term deposits less hnancial liablknes as detalled in note 16

2009
Net debt excluding loan 1o parent undertaking preference shares and denvative financial mstruments (£m) 1886
Total equity including loan to parent undertaking and preference shares (€m) 238.2
Gearing ratio (%) 78
Adjusted net debt! to adjusted EBITDA cover
Adjusted net debt to adjusted EBITDA compnses net debt excluding loan due to parent underiaking dvided by operatng profit from confinuing aperations before restructunng costs
management fea 10 privale equity Investor depreciation intangibles amortisation and impaiurment of assets

2009

Net debt excluding loan to parent undertaking, preterence shares and dervative financial instrurments (£m) 188.6
Qperatng profit before restructunng cosis (£m) 231
Management fee to private equity nvestor depreciation, intangibles amortisation and impairment of assets (Em) 289
Adjusted EBTTDA (£m) 530
Adjusted net debt to adjusted EBITDA cover {rato} 36

Interest cover

Interest cover compnses operating profit from continuing cperatans betore restructuring costs, management fee to private equity investor and Intangibles amortsabon drvided by the net
finance costs excluding interest on loan to parent undertaking and preference dvidend

2009
Operating profit before restructunng costs management fee to private equity invester and intangibles amorusation (£m) 361
Net finance costs excluding interest on loan to parent undentaking (£m) 74
Interest cover {rauo) 13
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19 PROVISIONS

Restructuring Dilapidations 2009
£m £m £m
At Incorporation - .
Acquesiion of subsidiaries {note 9) 04 45 49
Additions n the penod 20 20
Uthsed 03 03
Exchange adjustment 01 01
Credit to income statement for the period {03) (03
Al 31 D« b 18 46 64
Cument 18 18
Nor-current 46 46
At 31 December 2009 148 46 64

On acquisihon of the testing business of Bodycote ple provision has been recognised for the ddapdation costs associated with exiting existing operating lease which have an average life of
510 7 years remaining

20 DEFERRED TAX
Other
temporary
difterences
2009
£m

Deferred tax assets 14
Defemed tax llabiities {8.3)

Net deferred tax hability {6 9)

Certain deferred tax assets and liabiibes hava been offset where the Group has a legally enforceable night 1o set off cutrent tax assets against current tax liabihties and where the deferred
tax assets and liabilites relate o Income taxes levied by the same tax junsdictions

21 ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Called Up Share Capltal 2009
Ordlnary Shares £m
Authonsed

10 000 000 ordinary share of £1 each 100

Allotted, 15sued and fully paki
3 927 961 ordinary share of £1 each 3%

The company allotted one £1 ordinary share at par on 10 October 2008 Dunng the period a further 3 927 960 £1 ordinary shares were 1ssued for £1 each

Deferred Shares
Authonsed
$ 0K0 00 deferred share of £1 each 50

Allotted issued and fully paid
Nl .

No deferred shares were issued dunng the perod

Forelgn currency transiation reserve
The translauon reserve compnses all foreign currency diferences ansing from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations as well as from the translation of the kablities.
that hedge the Graup s net investment in a foreign subsidiary

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve records the effective portion of gains and losses anising from the remeasurement of inancial Instruments designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges
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22 COMMITMENTS

2009
{a) Capital s £m
At 31 December
Contracted for but nat provicded 17
Land and
(b) Op g lease i buildings Other Total
2009 2009 2009
The 1otal of future munimum lease payments in respect of non-cancellable cperating leases are as follows £m £m £m
At 31 December
Within one year 77 16 83
Between two and five years 169 19 158
After fve years 149 149
39.5 35 430

The Group leases vanous properpes and plant and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The leases have various terms and renewal nghts  The Group has also
sub-let certain properties under non-cancellable sublease agreements and the total of future mimmum lease payments expected to be receved amounts to £1 1m

23 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Dunng the period the Company has entered inte certain transactions with other companies in the Exova Group  Details of these transactions are as follows

2009
(O £m
Management fee 1a private equity investor o7
Finance costs on loan from parent undertaking {note 5) 07
Preference share dwvidend 62
2009
(b) Pericd-ond bal, at 31 D b £m
Loans owed to parent undertaking (note 16) 2434
2009
{c) Key g i £m
Salanes and short-term benefits 10
Post employment benefits -
Termunation benetits 02
12

Key management comprises members of the executive team

d} Transactlons with equity intereats of less than 51%

The Group holds equity interests of fess than 51% in the fallowing companies
Exova (Qatar) LLC 24 5%

Al Futtaim Exova LLC  49%

Exova Wamnngtonfire Midd!e East LLC  49%

Exova (Saud Arabia) limded 50%

The Group has majority reprasentation on these entities boards of directors and is required to approve all major operational decisians  The operations are used solely by the Group
Based on these facts and crcumstances, management has determuned that in substance the Group controls these entites and therefore consolidates the entities o its financial statements

{e) Other transactions with private equity investor

Upon completion of the acquisition of the 1esting business from Badycote plc tees of £58 3m were paki to the private equity invester in connechon with services provided in respect of the
acquisiion and the related debt financing

24 ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY AND CONTROLLING PARTIES

The mmediate parent undertaking and controlling party 15 Excva Group BY, a private imited company registered in the Netharands Clayton, Dubilier & Fiwce LLC, the manager of Clayton
Dubiher & Rice Fund VII LP 1s considered to be the ulimate controlling party
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PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
At 31 December 2009

Company Registratron No 06720350

2009 2009

Notes £m £m
Assets
Fixed assets
Investments in subsidianes 3 24
Loans due from subsidiary undertakings 40.9 433
Current assets
Amounts due from parent undertaking 08
Cash o8 16
Creditors falling due within one year
Trade and other payables {02) (02)
Net current assets 14
Tolal assets less current habihties 447
Creditors falling due after more than one year
Preference share dividend payable (6.2} (6 2)
Net assets 385
Creditors falling due after more than one year
Financial habities - preference shares 7 (34 2) (34.2)
Total assets 43
Shareholders' equity
Called up share capital 4 39
Retained earnings 04
Total shareholders’ equity 43

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 7 Aprit 2010 and signed on ts behalf by

4

G RUMBLES
Chief Executive Officer
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period trom i jon on 10 October 2068 to 31 D 2009

1 Signlficant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The C: s financial have been prepared under tha histoncal cost convention and in accordance with applicable UK accounting standards The financial statements.
have been prepared ¢n a going concem basis

Proflt and loss account

Under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company s exempt from the requuernent to present its own profit and bss account.

Relatad party transaction

As tha parent company of the Exova Group (the nancial statements for which can be tound on pages 19 to 40} the Company has taken acvantage of the exemplion contamed n
FRSE and has therefore not disclosed transactions or batances with entibes which tarm part of the Group

Foreign currencies

Transacticns in cummencies other than pounds steriing are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactons At each balance sheet date monetary assels
and kabiihes that are densmemnated i foreign cumencies are retranslated

Tazatlon

Tha Company's tax charge 13 based on the resull for the penod and tax rates in force dunng the penod Estimaton of the tax charge requues an assessment 1o be made of the poteriual
tax treatment of certain tems which will anly be resolved once tnal

Investments

Investments are stated at cost less provisions for any impaurment

Dlvidends

Dividends payable 1o the Company's sharehoklers are recorded as a kability In the penod in which the dwvidends are approved

F P shares are clasaihied as a financal lability measured at amortised cost untl i 18 extinguished an redempbion
Sagmental reporting

The Company’s business 1s 10 invest and then prowwde bnance 10 ks subsdanes and cperales in a single segment.

Audlt toes

Audit tees for the Company of £5 000 were borne by a subsidiary undertaking

2 Sta¥ costs

Employees and Directors’ smoluments

The Group considers key management to be those persons whe have the authonty and responstity for planning  directing and controlling the actmties of the
No emoluments were payable le the Diractors in respect of services to the Company

Dhsclosures regarding Director's remuneration &nd pangion entitternents are included in note 4 of the proup financial statements

3 Investments

A list of the sigruficant investments in subsdiaries including the name, country of incarporation and propartion of owriership interest s gven balow

Caountry of Principal Percentage
Incorporation Activity hokding

Subsldlary Undertakings
Exova Topco Limited {Formery CDR Tabasco Topeo Linuted) UK Holding 100%
Exova Holdings Limsted (Formerly COR Tabasco (Holdings) Limited) UK Holding 100%
Exova Limited {formerty COR Tabasco Limited) UK Hoiding 100%
Exgva Group (UK) Limited (formerly Bodycote Testing Group Limited) UK Holding 100%
MTS Pendar Limited UK Holding 100%
warmmngton Fire Research Group Ltd UK Holding 100%
Exova (LK) Linuted (formerly Badycote Testing Limited) UK Testing 100%
Exova Warnng:on Fire Consutung (Guernsey} Lid (formerty Bodycote UK Testing 100%
Warnngton Fire Research Gent NV Belgium Testing 100%
Exova Sro (fonnerly Bodycote Matenals Testing Sro ) Czech Republic  Testing 100%
Exova Metech AS (formerly Bodycote Matech AS) Denmark Testing 100%
Exova Metech Oy (formerly Bodycote Metech Oy) Finland Testing 100%
Exova SA {formerly Centech SAS) France Testing 100%
Exova {Holdings } GmbH (formerty Bodycete Testing Holdings GmBH) Germany Holding 100%
Exgva Metech GmbH (formerly Bodycote Metech GmbH) Germany Testing 100%
Exova GmbH (formerly Bodycote Testing GmBH} Germany Testng 100%
Exova (Ireland) Lirmited {formerly Bodycate Consultus Limited) irelang Testing 100%
Exova Metlab Limited (formerty Metiab (Internauonal) Lirated) Ireland Testng 100%
Exgva Sil (tormerty Bodycote Matenals Testing S} ltaty Testing 100%
Centro Tnveneto Richerche Sl Italy Testing 100%
Companants Stability A S Itaty Tesung 51%
Exova BV (formerly Bodycote Matenals Testng BV } Netherlands Testing 100%
Exova (Holdings) B V (formerty Bodycote Matenals Testing Europe B Y} Netharlands Holding 100%
Exova Rotterdam BV (formerty Rotterdam Painting Consuliants BV ) Netherlands Testng 100%
Exova A/S (formerly Bodycote Matenals Testing A/S) Norway Testing 100%
Exova {Sweden) Holdings AB (formerly CDRT (Sweden) AB) Sweden Holding 100%
Exova AB (formerly Bodycote Matenals Testing AB) Sweden Testing 100%
CSM NDT Cerufication AB Sweden Tasting 100%
Exova Metech AB (formerly Bodycote Metech AB} Sweden Testing 100%
Exova (US) Holdings Inc {formerty COR Tabasco (US) Inc) us Holding 100%
Exova Inc {formerly Bodycote Matenals Testing Inc) us Testng 00%
Exova {Canada} Ing (formerly Bodycote Canada Inc) Canada Testing 100%
Exova Property Holdings Inc (formerty Bodycote Praperty Holdings Inc} Canada Testing 100%
Exova (Mexco) Testing Inc (formerty Bodycote Matenals Testng de Mexica SAL de CV) Maxco Tesung 100%
Exava Warnngtonfire Midale East LLC {tormarly Bodycote Wamngton Fire Mddle East LLC) Dubai Testng 449% *
Al Futtasm Exova LLC (formerly Al Futtaim Bodycote Testng LLG) * Dubai Testing 49%~
Exgva Limited & Co LLC (formerty Bodycote Matenals Testng Services Limutad & Co LLC) Oman Testing T0%
Exova {Qatar) LLC (formerty Bodycote Matenals Testing Services LLC) * Qatar Testing 24 5%
Exgva {Saudi Arabia) Lirmted (formerty Bodycots Testing Saua Arabéa Ltd LLC) * Saudi Arabia Testing 50% *
Exova Warnngton Aus Pty Limted (formerty Bodycote Wamngton Fire {(Aus) Pty Ltd) Australia Testing 100%
Exova (Cayman) Limited (formerty Bodycote Testing Cayman Limited) Cayman Islands Testing 100%
Expva Wamnngtonfire HK Limuted {formerly Warrington Fire Research (Asia Paefic) Lid) Hong Kong Testing 100%
Exova (Singapore) Pta Lunuted (tormerly Bodycote Testing Singapore Pte Limited) Stngapore Testing 100%

These campanes are treated as subsdiangs In the results of the Group as effective control over ther operations exsts as descnbed in the shareholder and management sennces
agreements with the relative parties

The Company s takung the exemplion avadable under Sectian 410 of the Companies Act 2008 ta only dsclose pnncpal subexbanas
Exova Topco Luruted shareholding are held diectly whilst all others are held through wholly ewned subsidianes
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the perfod from incarporation on 10 Ociober 2008 to 31 Decermber 2009

3 Investments (continued)
Shares at cost less provisions.

Al date of incorporabion
Addibens i the penod

As at 31 Decembaer 2009

4 Called Up Shars Capital
Ordlnary Shares

Authonsed

10 300 000 ordinary share of £1 each

Allotted rssued and fully paxd
3927 961 orckinary share of £1 each

The company allotted one £1 ordinary share at par on 10 October 2008 Dupng the penod a further 3 927 960 £1 erdinary shares wera 1ssued for £1 each

Deterred Shares
Authonsed
5 Q00 000 deferred share of £1 each

Allgtted rssuad and fully paxt
Nl

Ne deferred shares wera issued dunng the pened
5 Profit and loss account
At incorporation

Profit ansing for the penod

At 31 Decomber 2009

& Reconclliation of movement In shareholders funds,
Opening sharehoidars funds

Profit for the penod
New shares subscnbed

Neat movement in sharsholders’ funds
Closing sharsholders’ funds

7 Preference Shares

Authonsed

50 000 00O preferance shares of £1 aach

Allotted ssued and lully paid
34,216 458 pralerance shares of £1 each

Dunng the penod 34 216 459 £1 preference shares wera 1ssued for £1 each

Subsidiary
undartakings
squity

£m

24

24

2009
£€m

100

|

50

"5 8 | }

0.2

02

At 31 Decamber 2009 there wera 34,216 459 redeemabla praference shares on issue Each share has a pas value of £1 and has no tixed redemption date The preference shares
carry a dnadend of 15% per annum, payable annually in arrears on 31 December The dwidend nghts are curulative The preference shares rank ahead of the ordinary shares in the

event of a hquidabion

& Uttimate parent company and controlling parties

The immediate parent undertalung and controlling party 18 Exova Group BV, & private lmited company registered in the Netherlands Clayton, Dubitier & Rice LLC the
manager of Clayton Dubilier & Rice Fund VII LP, 15 considered 1o be the ulumate controlling party
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